
 
 

 
Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

 
 

 
 
 
 

BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

December 15, 2022 
 

8:45 a.m. Closed Session 
9:30 a.m. Open Session   

 
   
 

 





 
1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

 
 
 
 
 

TO: Board of Trustees 
 

FROM: Brian Dozer 
 

DATE: December 7, 2022 
 

SUBJECT: Board Package 
 
 
 

Enclosed are the agenda and supporting materials for the Thursday, December 15, 2022, 
regular Board of Trustees meeting. As a reminder, we decided at the last meeting to 
eliminate the pre-meeting going forward. The board meeting will begin with a closed 
session at 8:45 a.m. Open session is scheduled to begin at 9:30 a.m. 

 
I am looking forward to seeing you on Thursday, December 15, 2022. 

 
 
 

Enclosure 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Participating School Districts: Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:  Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

http://www.coastlinerop.net/




COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
Paul E. Snyder Administrative Center, 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa 92626-1584  

 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Thursday, December 15, 2022 
8:45 a.m. Closed Session 
9:30 a.m.  Open Session 

       
PUBLIC COMMUNICATION TO THE BOARD - Anyone desiring to address the Board on any item will be granted three minutes to make 
a presentation to the Board. If the topic relates to a particular agenda item, you have the option of requesting to be called upon to make 
your remarks at the time the item is discussed by the Board. (Education Code §35145.5, Government Code §5495.3) 

 
Meetings are recorded for use in the official minutes. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. BOARD MEETING CALLED TO ORDER  
 

Meeting is called to order by _______________________________    at  _______ a.m. 
 
2. ROLL CALL: Lynn Davis, President    _____ 
    Michelle Barto, Vice President  _____ 

Suzie Swartz, Clerk _____ 
    Diana Carey, Member       _____ 
 Lauren Brooks, Member _____ 

  
Coastline ROP: Brian Dozer, Superintendent  

J. S. Coke, Director of Educational Services 
Sesar Morfin, Director of Business Services 

  
3. PUBLIC COMMENT ON CLOSED SESSION ITEMS – Anyone desiring to address the 

Board on any closed session item will be granted three minutes to make a presentation to 
the Board. 

 
4. CLOSED SESSION                 Discussion 

A. Public Employee Evaluation: Superintendent (pursuant to Government Code §54957) 
 

5. RECONVENE IN OPEN SESSION                                                             Discussion 
A. Reporting out of Closed Session 

 
6. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
7. ADOPTION OF AGENDA – Recommend the agenda be adopted as submitted. 

 
Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

8. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Anyone desiring to address the Board on any item not on the 
agenda will be granted three minutes to make a presentation to the Board. 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 
9. MEDICAL INNOVATION, RESEARCH AND ENTREPRENEURSHIP PRESENTATION 
 
10. SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – Brian Dozer 
 
11. EDUCATIONAL SERVICES’ UPDATE – J. S. Coke 

 
 

 



DISCUSSION/ACTION ITEMS 

12. AB 361- Brown Act Amendment Discussion/Action 
According to AB 361, it is recommended that the Board continue  
to meet in person unless (1) state or local health officials have  
imposed or recommended measures to promote social distancing  
or (2) the legislative body has determined by a majority vote that  
meeting in person would present an imminent risk to the health or safety 
of the attendees. 

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

13. Election of Officers – In keeping with the rotation Discussion/Action 
schedule established for the election of Board officers,
it is recommended that the Board approve the following
slate of officers for leadership during 2023:

 President       NMUSD 
 Vice President   SVUSD 
 Clerk        HBUHSD 

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______

14. Board Meeting Calendar for 2023 - Recommend Discussion/Action
the Board approve the proposed calendar of meetings
for 2023.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______

15. First Interim Budget Certification - Recommend Discussion/Action 
the Board approve, as presented, certification for the First 
Interim Budget with appropriate standards and criteria.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

16. OC Pathways Regional K16 Education Collaborative Discussion/Action 
Grant Program Services Agreement – Recommend the
Board approve the K16 service agreement as presented.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________   Vote_______ 

17. Employee Reclassification - Recommend the Board Discussion/Action 
approve the facility maintenance and custodian worker
reclassification as presented.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________   Vote_______ 

18. Revisions to Coastline ROP Compensation Schedule Discussion/Action 
Recommend the Board approve the revised compensation
schedule as presented.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 

19. CYBERFORWARD Memorandum of Understanding Discussion/Action 
Recommend the Board approve the MOU between
Coastline ROP and CYBERFORWARD.

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______ 



RESOLUTION CONSENT CALENDAR   Action 

All matters listed under the Resolution Consent Calendar are considered by the Board to be items 
that will be enacted by the Board in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to 
the time the Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board or staff request specific items 
be discussed and/or removed from the Resolution Consent Calendar.  

It is recommended the Board approve: 

20. Resolution #2 / 2022-2023: Budget Adjustment
21. Resolution #3 / 2022-2023: Budget Transfer

Motion by _____________________ Seconded by ______________________ 

Votes:  
Member Davis  _____ 
Member Barto    _____ 
Member Swartz _____ 
Member Carey     _____ 
Member Brooks _____ 

CONSENT CALENDAR Action 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered by the Board to be items that will be 
enacted by the Board in one motion.  There will be no discussion of these items prior to the time the 
Board votes on the motion unless members of the Board or staff request specific items be discussed 
and/or removed from the Consent Calendar. 

It is recommended that the Board approve: 

22. Minutes from the November 10, 2022, Board of Trustees meeting
23. Ratification of purchase order report ending November 30, 2022
24. Ratification of check report ending November 30, 2022
25. California Association of School Business Officials organizational subscription in the amount

of $637.50
26. Internship sites
27. Personnel Register #5 – 2022-2023 (Approval of employee appointments, release,

retirements, terminations, leaves, transfers, promotions, stipends, additional/overtime
assignments)

28. Approval/Ratification of travel conference report

Motion by__________________   Seconded by_________________    Vote_______
NEW BUSINESS Information 

ADJOURNMENT 

Motion by_________________ Seconded by_________________ Vote_______ at ____a.m. 

Next Scheduled Meeting:  January 19, 2023 

Public Records related to the public session agenda that is distributed to the Governing Board less than 72 hours before a 
regular meeting may be inspected by the public at 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, during regular business hours 
(7:30 a.m. to 4:30 p.m.) or on our website https://www.coastlinerop.net/ 

https://www.coastlinerop.net/




Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: 

FROM: 

DATE:  

Board of Trustees 

Brian Dozer 

December 5, 2022

SUBJECT: AB 361 

Governor Newsom signed AB 361, an urgency measure that authorizes until January 1, 
2024, continued teleconferencing flexibility for meetings held by local agencies subject 
to the Brown Act.  As an urgency measure, the provisions go into effect immediately.  
Below is a summary of the provisions related to the Brown Act.  

1) Creates statutory exemptions to the Brown Act’s teleconferencing
requirements during a state or local emergency, as detailed below, until
January 1, 2024.

2) Authorizes a local agency to use teleconferencing for a public meeting without
complying with the Brown Act’s teleconferencing quorum, meeting notice, and
agenda requirements set forth in Government Code Section 54953(b)(3), in any
of the following circumstances:

a) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of
emergency, and state or local officials have imposed or recommended
measures to promote social distancing.

b) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of
emergency for purposes of determining, by majority vote, whether as a
result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent
risks to   the health and safety of attendees.

c) The legislative body holds a meeting during a proclaimed state of
emergency and has determined by majority vote pursuant to b) above that,
as a result of the emergency, meeting in person would present imminent
risks to the health or safety of attendees.

3) Provides that if the state of emergency remains active, or state or local officials
have imposed measures to promote social distancing, the legislative body must,
in order to continue meeting subject to this exemption to the Brown Act, no later
than 30 days after it commences using the exemption, and every 30 days
thereafter, make the following findings by majority vote:

a) The legislative body has reconsidered the circumstances of the state of
emergency; and

12.0



b) Either (i) the state of emergency continues to directly impact the ability of the
members to meet safely in person, or (ii) state or local officials continue to
impose or recommend measures to promote social distancing.

According to AB 361, it is recommended the Board continue to meet in person 
unless (1) state or local health officials have imposed or recommended measures to 
promote social distancing or (2) the legislative body has determined by a majority 
vote that meeting in person would present an imminent risk to the health or safety of 
the attendees. 

12.1



Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer 

DATE:  December 07, 2022 

SUBJECT: Election of Officers 

Coastline ROP has an established district rotation schedule. Following the schedule, the 
rotation would be: 

NMUSD – President 
SVUSD – Vice-President 
HBUHSD – Clerk 
IUSD – Member 
TUSD – Member 

We will ratify the names of the officers at the January board meeting once each 
participating district has appointed their representative to serve on the ROP Board of 
Trustees. 

It is respectfully requested the Board of Trustees approve the proposed slate of officers.  

13.0





COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
2023 BOARD CALENDAR 

January 19 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

February 16 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Textbook Inventory

March 9 (2nd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Interim Budget Review
2022-23 Coastline ROP Priorities Update

April 20 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

May 18 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Review Superintendent’s Evaluation Process
Employ Summer Semester Staff

June 15 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Public Hearing for 2023-2024 Budget
Adopt 2023-2024 Budget
Authorize Superintendent to Approve Travel and
Conferences
2023-2024 School Calendar
Discussion of Superintendent’s Evaluation
Interagency Agreements Appendix A for 2023-2024

July 20 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

August 17 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Administrative Contract Extensions
Board Input for 2023-2024 Coastline ROP Priorities

September 14 (2nd Thursday) - Board Meeting
Superintendent’s Evaluation
2022-2023 Unaudited Actuals Report

October 19 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

November 16 (3rd Thursday) - Board Meeting

December 14 (2nd Thursday) - Organizational Meeting
Audit Report
Interim Budget Review

Meeting Time: 9:30 a.m. 

Board approved: 

14.0





1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  December 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: First Interim Report – October 31, 2022 

In accordance with state financial reporting requirements, attached is the First Interim 
Budget report covering the period of July 1, 2022, to October 31, 2022. The interim 
report allows us to make any necessary revisions to the budget and determine if 
necessary levels of cash are available to meet our expenditure obligations. 

This budget meets the Criteria and Standards for interim reports designated by the 
California Department of Education. Analysis shows that both the cash balance and the 
fund balance will be positive at the close of the fiscal year. Available unrestricted 
reserves for economic uncertainties are estimated to exceed the minimum requirement 
of 5.0 percent. 

The estimated change in the current operating budget reflects a decrease in revenue 
and an increase in expenditures. The current board-approved operating budget 
assumes a surplus of revenues over expenditures in the amount of $1,711,425. The 
First Interim Report projects an overall surplus of revenues over expenditures in the 
amount of $660,881, or a decrease in the projected surplus of $1,050,544 to the board-
approved budget for the 2022-2023 year.  An important factor to consider is the fact that 
included within the board-approved budget for 2022-2023 was the remaining 
supplemental Covid-19 relief monies from the 2021-2022 year which were 
approximately $2.3 million.  These funds need to be spent by June of 2023.  The board 
approved that any remaining unspent supplemental Covid-19 relief monies which were 
not allocated for a specific purpose be used to fund our general operating expenditures 
(salaries, benefits, supplies, etc.) in the 2021-2022 year.  As the 2022-2023 budget was 
prepared, certain expenditures were included in the supplemental Covid-19 relief 
monies funding plan.  Any remaining unallocated monies were allocated to fund a 
portion of our general operating expenditures as was done in the 2021-2022 year.  

Revenue 
The revised revenue projection is due to several factors.  First, decreased revenues are 
expected because of the cancellation of non-fee-based classes due to low enrollment 
and personnel changes that took place regarding our career specialists. Per our Joint 
Powers Agreement (JPA) with our partnering districts, Coastline is directly reimbursed 
for the costs associated with our career specialists.  In this case, we are projecting a 
lower amount of costs for these positions than was originally planned for in the adopted 
2022-2023 budget which is why the amount of revenue we project to receive for these 
positions is lower than we originally planned for.  In addition, an understanding was 
reached with each of our partner districts earlier this fall that reduced their cost per 

15.0



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

section fee by approximately 6.56%, or a reduction in revenue to the ROP of 
approximately $276K.  Lastly, we expect decreased revenue due to an understanding 
that was reached between Coastline and our partnering districts with respect to under-
enrolled after-bell classes this fall semester.  Coastline agreed to fund the cost of those 
classes with our districts in an effort to continue to offer these programs to our students 
without the risk of those classes being cancelled.  This understanding equates to a 
reduction in revenue to the ROP of approximately $282K.  These understandings were 
reached so that the supplemental Covid-19 relief monies were utilized in the best 
manner possible to assist our districts and minimize any impact to our students. 

This reduction in revenue is being partially offset by an increase in revenue from other 
sources.  First, interest income is projected to be higher than originally expected in the 
2022-2023 budget.  Second, grant revenue is also projected to be slightly higher than 
originally expected.  This is primarily due to underestimating the amount of unspent 
grant monies in the 2021-2022 year.  Any unspent grant monies must be recognized in 
the year in which they are spent.  The expenditures associated with those grant monies 
are also being recognized in the 2022-2023 year.  Lastly, several courses were added 
by two of our districts which helped to partially offset the overall reduction in revenue.     

In addition, numerous expenditures have already been and/or plan to be incurred in our 
general fund during the 2022-2023 year that will be funded with the Covid-19 monies.  
These expenditures are related to providing in person instruction to our students 
(professional development for our teachers and staff, job placement advertisements, 
technology upgrades, etc.).  The Covid-19 relief monies that are allocated to fund these 
expenditures are included within the First Interim report for 2022-2023.   

Expenditures 
The revised expenditures projections are due to some of the factors noted above.  First, 
grant-related expenditures increased due to underestimating the amount of grant-
related expenditures in the 2021-2022 year.  These expenditures must be recognized in 
the year in which they are incurred.  Second, the board approved several salary-related 
actions which increased our expenditures for the 2022-2023 year.  These actions 
include hiring bonuses and retention incentives for our newly hired teachers and staff, 
retention incentives for our existing teachers and staff, and a 3% permanent salary 
increase for our existing teachers and staff.  We estimate that all these actions will 
increase our expenditures by approximately $500K.  All the hiring and retention 
incentives will be funded with the Covid-19 relief monies.  These actions were taken to 
retain our dedicated teachers and staff and to attract the best talent in an extremely 
challenging job market.  Lastly, expenditures increased due to an increase in the 
number of classes by two of our districts.     

The increase in expenditure projections was partially offset by other decreases in 
expenditures.  Both certificated and classified salaries and benefits were reduced due to 
the cancellation of classes because of low enrollment as well as other personnel 
changes.  As mentioned previously, the costs associated with our career specialists are 
lower than originally expected.  Employee health benefits were also reduced due to 
personnel changes and health plan changes/adjustments made by our employees 
which resulted in a lower cost to the ROP.  

Overall, the revised revenue projection needs to be decreased by $292,586 from our 
originally adopted budget for 2022-2023 while the expenditure projection needs to be 
increased by $757,958.  After these board resolutions are considered, the net decrease 

15.1



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

in our surplus is $1,050,544.  The surplus amount in our originally adopted budget for 
2022-2023 was $1,711,425 so this results in an overall surplus amount of $660,881 for 
2022-2023.    

A Budget Adjustment Resolution has been included for your approval which delineates 
which revenue/reserve and expenditure/reserve codes are to be adjusted in order to 
account for the decreased revenue for 2022-2023.  In addition, a Budget Transfer 
Resolution has been included for your approval which delineates which 
expenditure/reserve codes are to be adjusted to account for the anticipated expenditure 
increase for 2022-2023. 

Reserves 
On July 1, 2022, the beginning balance for the General Fund was $5,600,528. Following 
is the estimated ending General Fund balance as of June 30, 2023. 

Nonspendable 
Reserve for Revolving Cash  10,000 

Restricted 
CalWORKS for ROCP Adults  9,527 

Unassigned 
Undesignated/Unappropriated    5,863,672 
Reserve for Economic Uncertainties      250,000 

Assigned 
Newport-Mesa Lottery  68,112 
Tustin USD Lottery   60,098 

Total Reserves – Projected Ending General Fund Balance $6,261,409 

The majority of ROP reserves are classified as an unrestricted resource, which do not 
have ending fund balance restrictions and/or limitations. Per the California Department 
of Education, CalWORKS funds generated by applicable ROP adults are restricted for 
use in the adult programs that generated the CalWORKS ADA. 

Multi-Year Projections 
The main premise that our multi-year projections are based on is the cost per section 
model per the JPA which went into effect as of July 1, 2020.  Each district has agreed to 
a minimum base number of sections for the 2022-2023 year and those base number of 
sections along with the cost per section which has also been agreed to and is part of the 
JPA, is how the amount of expected revenue was calculated for the 2023-2024 and 
2024-2025 years.  The assumption made for both the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 years 
is that no change would be made to the base number of sections by any of our districts 
and we would receive a cost-of-living adjustment (COLA) of 5.38% in 2023-2024 and 
4.02% in 2024-2025 which would result in an increased cost per section in each of the 
next two years. Per the terms of the JPA, the cost per section will be assessed on a 
yearly basis in consultation with our partnering districts to determine the viability of that 

15.2



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

cost over the long term.  Any change to that cost per section excluding the increase for 
the COLA adjustment, would necessitate a revision to the revenue projections.   

The other major assumption that is being made is that Huntington Beach Union High 
School District will withdraw from the JPA at the end of the 2022-2023 year.  Huntington 
Beach Union notified us of their intent to withdraw from the JPA in September 2022 and 
that withdrawal would become effective as of July 1, 2023.  In order to be fiscally 
prudent, the assumption was made that the withdrawal would be finalized.  If Huntington 
Beach Union does not withdraw from the JPA, then the multi-year projections would 
need to be adjusted. 

In terms of other revenue streams, we assumed that no new grant funding would be 
secured in the 2023-2024 year, and beyond which is why revenue decreased 
significantly.  Applications have already been submitted for additional grant funds.  As 
those funds are secured and received, they will be included in the multi-year 
projections. 

As previously noted, Coastline was the recipient of supplemental Covid-19 funds in the 
2021-2022 year.  This revenue was not included in the 2023-2024 year since the funds 
need to be expended by June of 2023 which is another factor contributing to the 
reduction in revenue over the next two years.  Our other revenue streams include tuition 
and fees, interest income, rebates, etc. Factors considered in calculating these revenue 
projections include historical data, expected inflation, exclusion of any one-time monies, 
etc.  

In terms of expenditures, those associated with one-time grant revenue were excluded 
from both the 2023-2024 and 2024-2025 years which is why expenditures decreased 
significantly.  In terms of any salary increases for our teachers and staff, none were 
included.  Our teachers and staff do not receive automatic salary increases each year.  
Those increases must be board-approved.   Any salary increases that are board-
approved in the future will be included in the multi-year projections.  Other factors 
considered in calculating these expenditure projections (books, supplies, equipment) 
include historical data, expected inflation, exclusion of any one-time monies, etc.  

The ROP anticipates a deficit in the 2023-2024 year whereas a surplus is expected in 
the 2022-2023 year.  There are a few primary drivers behind this.  First, the ROP is 
utilizing the remaining Covid-19 monies during the 2022-2023 year which is a big factor 
behind why a surplus is anticipated, and those monies are no longer available in the 
2023-2024 year.  Another driver is the anticipated withdrawal of the Huntington Beach 
Union High School District which would become effective July 1, 2023.  With the 
withdrawal of a partner district comes the loss of the revenue that the ROP receives 
from that district.  We also reduce our expenditures since those classes will no longer 
be offered but the net loss to us after revenue lost and all expenditures are considered 
is significant.  If the withdrawal does not come to fruition, then the projected deficits for 
the next two years are eliminated altogether.  The last driver contributing to the deficit is 
the exclusion of new grant funding in the 2023-2024 year.  Typically, there is an indirect 
cost component to the grant funding we secure which allows us to utilize a percentage 
of the grant award received to offset our overall expenditures.  The overall deficit in the 
2024-2025 year does decrease compared to 2023-2024 which assumes that we would 
receive a 4.02% COLA in 2024-2025 and that all other expenditures will remain 
relatively stable. 

15.3



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Although we are projecting deficits in the following two years, Coastline will have a 
considerable amount of reserves available to absorb these deficits.  Coastline will work 
closely with the Board to identify ways to reduce these deficits while providing the best 
value possible to our partnering districts.  Spending these monies strategically while 
building out our programs and controlling costs as best as possible will put us in a 
position to eliminate the need to deficit spend while providing our districts with the level 
of service they expect at a reasonable cost. 

The Board of Trustees shall certify in writing whether or not the ROP is able to meet its 
financial obligations for the remainder of the fiscal year and, based on current forecasts, 
for two subsequent fiscal years. The certifications shall be classified as positive, 
qualified, or negative, pursuant to standards and criteria adopted by the State Board of 
Education (Education Code 33127). 

In submitting the 2022-23 First Interim Report, the Board of Trustees understands its 
fiduciary responsibility to maintain fiscal solvency for the current and subsequent two 
fiscal years. As presented, Coastline ROP is projecting positive fund balances and cash 
flow for the current and two subsequent years. Furthermore, the ROP recognizes the 
need to maintain reserves above the five percent level currently required of a Local 
Education Agency (LEA) not funded on average daily attendance. If necessary, the 
ROP will consider subsequent year budget reductions in order to maintain positive 
certification. The ROP does not have bargaining units; therefore, budget reductions are 
not subject to negotiations.  

It is respectfully requested that the board approve the First Interim Budget report with a 
positive certification that the ROP can meet its financial obligations for the current year 
and two subsequent years. 

Enclosures 

15.4



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Revenue Detail Explanation Sheet 
8000 

Federal Revenues 
8290 Other federal revenues are not included at this time. 

State Revenues 
8590 Other state revenues are included for the CTE Incentive 

grant, CalWORKS for ROCP, Supplemental Covid-19 
funding, and STRS on-behalf revenue. 

Local Revenues 
8631 Sale of obsolete equipment when it is available. 

8660 Interest, 1.00% net yield on funds in county treasury 
educational pool. 

8699 Other income from local grant funds, printing projects, 
facilities use, donations, requests for records, refunds, etc. 

8710 Adult registration fees (includes fee-based courses). 

8781 ROP cost per section fee from participating districts and 
reimbursement of Career Specialist costs. 

15.5



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000-7000 

Certificated Salaries 

1100 Teachers. 

1200 Pupil Support/Counselor – currently there are no positions in  
this category. 

1300 Director, Educational Services; and Administrators, 
Educational Services. 

1900 K12 Pathway Coordinator, Instructional Support and Media 
Specialist, and Mentor Teachers. 

Classified Salaries 

2100 Instructional Assistants and Job Coaches. 

2200 Career Specialists, Network Specialist, and Facility 
Maintenance Technician. 

2300 Superintendent, Director of Business Services, Manager of 
Technology Services, Administrator Human Resources, and 
Board Members. 

2400 Support staff/Clerical personnel. 

2900 Other classified salaries. 

Employee Benefits 

3100 STRS – Rate 19.10% 

3200  PERS – Rate 25.37% 

3300 Medicare – Rate 1.45%; OASDI (non-STRS/PERS) – Rate 
6.2% 

3400 Health and Welfare – medical, dental, vision and life 
insurance benefits. 

15.6



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000 – 7000 

3500 Unemployment Insurance – 0.50% 

3600 Workers Compensation – Rate 1.9181% 

3700 Retiree Benefits 

Books, Supplies, Non-capitalized Equipment 

4100 Textbooks 

4200 Other Books 

4300 Materials and Supplies 

4400 Non-capitalized Equipment 

Services, Other Operating Expenses 

5200 Mileage, Conference and Travel. 

5300 Dues and Memberships – including CAROCP, CASBO, 
CSBA, and WASC. 

5400 Property and Liability Insurance – including special coverage 
for health program students. 

5500 Utilities and Housekeeping. 

5600 Rentals/Leases/Repairs – major expense in this item is the 
Presidio facility lease. 

5700 Direct cost transfers. 

15.7



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Expenditure Detail Explanation Sheet 
1000 – 7000 

5800 Professional Services, Other Services, and Operational 
Expenses –e.g. Presidio site facility maintenance, human 
resources and financial systems support, legal services, 
auditing services, advertising, and other miscellaneous 
expenses. 

5900 Communications – phone, Internet connection, postage. 

Capital Outlay 

6200 Buildings and Improvement of Buildings – includes leasehold 
improvements. 

6400 Equipment – instructional and non-instructional purposes. 

6500 Replacement of Equipment – instructional and non-
instructional purposes. 

Other Outgo 

7210 Indirect cost transfers. 

7213 Pass through of grant funds. 

7430 Debt service. 

7612 Transfers out. 

15.8



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

Multi-year Projections:  2023-2024 Budget Assumptions 

Revenue 

• Cost per Section Revenue from Districts – based on base level of sections for each
district included in the 2022-2023 year.  Those sections are multiplied by the
approved cost per section.  Cost per section was increased by the cost-of-living-
adjustment (COLA) of 5.38%.  The assumption was made that Huntington Beach
Union School district would withdraw from the JPA effective July 1, 2023.  Actual
costs for career specialists are estimated and included as reimbursable expenses
back to each respective district.

• CTE Incentive Grant is included; funding expires December 31, 2023.  The
application for the next round of the CTE Incentive Grant has already been
submitted and we are awaiting State Board approval which is expected to be given
in early 2023.  Those funds will need to be spent by December 31, 2024.

• K12 Strong Workforce Program Grant Round 3 is excluded and Round 4 is included;
funding expires June 30, 2024.  The application for the next round of the K12 Strong
Workforce Program Grant has already been submitted and we expect to be notified
of the approval of our application in early 2023.

• K12 Strong Workforce Program Pathway Coordinator Ground Round 4 is included;
funding expires September 30, 2023.

• Other Local Income – based on historical data less one-time monies.
• Interest Income – based on 1.00 percent yield.

Expenditures 

• Salaries – based on estimated 2022-2023 salaries with adjustments due to
personnel changes, the removal of one-time costs, grants and [non fee-based]
summer school salaries, etc. The ROP uses a performance-based compensation
system; it does not have a bargaining unit or automatic step and column increases
for salaries.  Adjustments were made to permanently increase eligible salaries by
3% per the board action approved in October 2022.

• Statutory Benefits – based on the following rates: CalSTRS 19.10%, CalPERS
25.20%, OASDI 6.2%, Medicare 1.45%, SUI (state unemployment insurance)
0.50%, and workers compensation 1.9181%.

• Health Benefits – based on 2022-2023 costs with consideration of expected increase
of 5%.

• Textbooks – based on similar expenditures as 2022-2023, less one-time
expenditures; includes one-time expenses associated with one-time grants.
Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Supplies – based on similar expenditures as 2022-23, less one-time expenditures,
includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for
inflation of 5% was included.

15.9



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

• Non-Capitalized Equipment – based on similar expenditures as 2022-2023, less
one-time expenditures, includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time
grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Professional Services & Other Operating Costs – based on similar expenditures as
2022-2023, less one-time expenditures, includes one-time grant expenditures
associated with one-time grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Capital Outlay – the ROP’s capital threshold is $5,000. Due to the nature of ROP
expenditures, we foresee only a minimal amount of purchases in excess of the
capital threshold. Prior year capital equipment was funded with grants.

Multi-year Projections:  2024-2025 Budget Assumptions 

Revenue 
• Cost per Section Revenue from Districts – based on base level of sections for each

district included in the 2022-2023 year.  Those sections are multiplied by the
approved cost per section.  Cost per section was increased by the cost-of-living-
adjustment (COLA) of 4.02%.  The assumption was made that Huntington Beach
Union School district would withdraw from the JPA effective July 1, 2023. Actual
costs for career specialists are estimated and included as reimbursable expenses
back to each respective district.

• CTE Incentive Grant and all K12 Strong Workforce Program grants are excluded.
Efforts to secure future grant funding in 2024-2025 are ongoing.

• Other Local Income – based on historical data less one-time monies.

• Interest Income – based on 1.00 percent yield.

Expenditures 

• Salaries – based on estimated 2023-2024 salaries with adjustments due to
personnel changes, the removal of one-time costs, grants and [non fee-based]
summer school salaries, etc. The ROP uses a performance-based compensation
system; it does not have a bargaining unit or automatic step and column increases
for salaries.  Adjustments were made to permanently increase eligible salaries by
3% per the board action approved in October 2022.

• Statutory Benefits – based on the following rates: CalSTRS 19.10%, CalPERS
24.60%, OASDI 6.2%, Medicare 1.45%, SUI (state unemployment insurance)
0.50%, and workers compensation 1.9181%.

• Health Benefits – based on 2022-2023 costs with consideration of expected increase
of 3%.

• Textbooks – based on similar expenditures as 2023-2024, less one-time
expenditures, including those associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for
inflation of 5% was included.

• Supplies – based on similar expenditures as 2023-24, less one-time expenditures,
includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time grants.  Adjustment for
inflation of 5% was included.

15.10



Coastline ROP 
2022-23 First Interim Report 

• Non-Capitalized Equipment – based on similar expenditures as 2023-2024, less
one-time expenditures, includes one-time expenditures associated with one-time
grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Professional Services & Other Operating Costs – based on similar expenditures as
2023-2024, less one-time expenditures, includes one-time grant expenditures
associated with one-time grant funds.  Adjustment for inflation of 5% was included.

• Capital Outlay – the ROP’s capital threshold is $5,000. Due to the nature of ROP
expenditures, we foresee only a minimal amount of purchases in excess of the
capital threshold. Prior year capital equipment was funded with grants.

15.11



15.12



15.13



15.14



15.15



15.16



15.17



15.18



15.19



15.20



15.21



15.22



15.23



15.24



15.25



15.26



15.27



15.28



15.29



15.30



15.31



15.32



15.33



15.34



15.35



15.36



15.37



15.38



15.39



15.40



15.41



15.42



15.43



15.44



15.45



15.46



15.47



15.48



15.49



15.50



15.51



15.52



15.53



15.54



15.55



S9. Status of Other Funds 

Analyze the status of other funds that may have negative fund balances at the end of the current fiscal year. If any other fund has a projected 

negative fund balance. prepare an interim report and multiyear projection for that fund. Explain plans for how and when the negative fund balance will be 

addressed. 

S9A. Identification of Other Funds with Negative Ending Fund Balances 

DATA ENTRY: Click the appropriate button in Item 1. If Yes, enter data in Item 2 and provide the reports referenced in Item 1. 

,. 

2. 

California Dept of Education 

Are any funds other than the general fund 

projected to have a negative fund 

balance at the end of the current fiscal 

year? 
No 

If Yes, prepare and submit to the reviewing agency a report of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance (e.g., an interim fund report) and a 

multiyear projection report for each fund. 

If Yes, identify each fund, by name and number, that is projected to have a negative ending fund balance for the current fiscal year. Provide reasons 

for the negative balance(s} and explain the plan for how and !Nhen the problem(s) will be corrected. 

SACS Financial Reporting Software - SACS V2 

File: CSI_JPA, Version 1 Page 23 Printed: 12/2/2022 7:37 AM 
15.56



15.57



Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees  

FROM: Brian Dozer  

DATE:  December 7, 2021 

SUBJECT: OC Pathways Regional K-16 Collaborative Grant Service Agreement 

Coastline ROP was awarded $130,000 in the OC Pathway Regional K-16 Collaborative 
Grant program for 2022-2025 to help fund new courses in supply chain management 
and entrepreneurship. The funds will cover teacher salaries and benefits, materials and 
supplies, field trips, training, professional development, curriculum development, and 
marketing. These courses will be regional, after-bell initially, and developed in 
collaboration with the districts. Additionally, they will be aligned with community college 
and 4-year university partner programs, creating K-16 pathways. 

It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the attached Service 
Agreement with the Orange County Department of Education. 

16.0



1 
Updated 2022.11.29 

OC PATHWAYS REGIONAL K-16 EDUCATION COLLABORATIVE  
GRANT PROGRAM SERVICE AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN 

THE ORANGE COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION AND PARTNERS 

This OC Pathways Regional K-16 Education Collaborative Grant Program Service Agreement 
(Service Agreement) is made by and between the Orange County Superintendent of Schools, also 
referred to as the “Orange County Department of Education;” each of the school districts and 
post-secondary institutions, individually and separately, as listed in Addendum A, and 
collectively referred to as “School Partners;” and, each of the vocational and workforce 
programs, individually and separately, as listed in Addendum B, collectively referred to as 
“Workforce Partners.” The Orange County Department of Education (OCDE), School Partners 
and Workforce Partners are collectively referred to herein as “Parties,” or individually as 
“Party.”  The Parties agree to the terms as stated herein.   

RECITALS 

Whereas, in July 2021, Governor Gavin Newsom signed Assembly Bill 132 (Chapter 144, 
Statues of 2021), which required the State to build a "data system", or data infrastructure, that 
allows for the integration of data from K-12 public education, early learning and care, higher 
education, student financial aid, workforce development, and human services. That system, 
known as the California Cradle to Career (C2C) Data System is managed by the Government 
Operations Agency. 

Whereas, the Cradle-to-Career Data System aims to link existing education, workforce, financial 
aid, and social service information to better equip policymakers, educators, and the public to 
address disparities in opportunities and improve outcomes for all students throughout the State; 

Whereas, the Cradle-to-Career Data System scales existing tools, such as the California College 
Guidance Initiative (CCGI), to provide college and career planning tools and curriculum; college 
eligibility monitoring tools; electronic transcripts, including nontraditional learning artifacts; 
option to share social service history with college application; and, support for data cleaning at 
local education agencies;  

Whereas, the Foundation for California Community Colleges is a nonprofit 501(c)(3) 
organization (Foundation) that operates the CCGI on behalf of all educational segments in 
California, in order to ensure the awareness and utilization of online planning tools in K-12 
districts and systematic baseline guidance and support for 6th-12th grade students as they plan, 
prepare and finance college; 

Whereas, the California Regional K-16 Education Collaboratives Grant Program (K-16 Grant 
Program), is part of a statewide strategy for strengthening education-to-workforce pathways and 
ensuring the education, vocational, and workforce programs work in partnership to address the 
income, racial, and gender inequities in education and employment.  Grant funds are awarded 
generally for purposes of supporting K-16 education collaboratives to create streamlined 
pathways from high school to postsecondary education and into the workforce;  

Agreement Number: 10002251

16.1



2 
Updated 2022.11.29 

Whereas, the K-16 Grant Program requires each collaborative to meet certain criteria, including 
but not limited to, committing to implement at least four of seven specific recommendations 
from the February 2021 Recovery with Equity report to promote student success. The February 
2021 Recovery with Equity Report (Recovery with Equity Report) is incorporated by reference 
and included as Addendum C;  

Whereas, the Orange County Department of Education was awarded grant funds pursuant to a 
Grant Agreement, in which OCDE is the Lead Agency for the Orange County Region under the 
collaborative name: OC Pathways (K-16 OC Pathways Grant Agreement).  The K-16 OC 
Pathways Grant Agreement is incorporated by reference and included as Addendum D;   

Whereas, OC Pathways Collaborative include School Partners and Workforces Partners that 
have elected to participate in the K-16 Grant Program through OCDE’s K-16 OC Pathways 
Grant Agreement. School Partners and Workforce Partners are collectively referred to as 
“Partners;”  

Whereas, in consideration of and on the condition that the sum be expended in carrying out the 
purposes of the K-16 Grant Program, OCDE aims to use Career Technical Education (CTE) as 
the vehicle to promote career and college readiness for Orange County students so that they have 
the skills necessary to enter the workforce and earn a livable wage;  

Whereas, the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act of 1974 (FERPA), set forth in Title 20 
of the United States Code (USC) section 1232g and its implementing regulations at 34 of the 
Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) section 99.1 et seq., generally prohibits the disclosure of 
students’ personally identifiable information without consent, subject to certain exceptions;  

Whereas, OCDE and the School Partners have entered into a separate agreement, the 
Interagency Data Sharing Agreement by and among the Orange County Department of 
Education, School Districts and Post-Secondary Institutions (Data Sharing Agreement) that 
allows the Parties to access, use, and disclose personally identifiable information from education 
records for the purposes that are consistent with this Service Agreement and in compliance with 
FERPA and other state and federal laws and regulations. The Data Sharing Agreement is 
incorporated by reference and included as Addendum E; 

Whereas, the Parties intend for this Service Agreement to outline the services and 
responsibilities of the Parties, as necessary for OCDE to fulfill the purposes of the K-16 Grant 
Program as outlined in OCDE’s OC Pathways Grant Agreement. 

AGREEMENT 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing recitals, which are hereby incorporated 
into this Service Agreement, it is agreed as follows:   

1. TERM

16.2



3 
Updated 2022.11.29 

1.1 This Service Agreement will be deemed to be effective as to a Party as of the date 
it is executed by an authorized signatory of that Party and will remain in effect 
until August 31, 2026, or termination pursuant to Section 13 of this Service 
Agreement, whichever is sooner.   

2. SCOPE AND PURPOSE
2.1 Through the K-16 Grant Program, the Parties intend to support the purposes

outlined in the Data Sharing Agreement by creating and strengthening existing 
partnerships from high school to postsecondary education and into the workforce. 

2.2 The Parties agree to work collaboratively to satisfy the requirements of K-16 
Grant Program, which includes but is not limited to the following:  
2.2.1 Participate in the Cradle-to-Career Data System;  
2.2.2 Implement the following recommendations from the February 2021 

Recovery with Equity Report to promote student success: 
2.2.2.1 Cultivate inclusive, engaging, and equity-oriented learning 

environments;  
2.2.2.2 Retain students through inclusive supports;  
2.2.2.3 Provide high-tech, high-touch advising; and, 
2.2.2.4 Support college preparation and early credit; 

2.2.3 Facilitate the development and sustainability of occupational pathways, 
including accelerated degree and/or credential programs that incorporate 
work-based learning, in one or more of the following sectors: (1) 
Healthcare; (2) Education; (3) Business Management; and (4) 
Engineering/Computing.   

2.2.4 Report progress and performance in accordance with applicable data 
reporting requirements as described in the K-16 Grant Program Data 
Reporting Guidelines (Data Reporting Guidelines). The Data Reporting 
Guidelines is incorporated by reference and included as Addendum F. 

2.3 In accordance with the Data Sharing Agreement, the Parties shall comply with the 
provisions of the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA) (20 U.S.C. 
§ 1232g; 34 CFR Part 99, as amended), California Education Code, the Student
Online Personal Information Protection Act ("SOPIPA"), California Business and
Professions Code section 22584, and other state and federal laws and regulations
regarding educational records in all respects.  Nothing in this Service Agreement
may be construed to supersede the Data Sharing Agreement.

3. RESPONSIBILITIES OF OCDE
3.1 OCDE will collect, analyze and study information received from:

3.1.1 College-to-Career Data System pursuant to the agreements described in 
Section 4.1.2 of this Service Agreement. 

3.1.2 School Partners pursuant to the Data Sharing Agreement.   
3.1.3 Workforce Partners pursuant to this Service Agreement.  

3.2 OCDE will provide technical assistance and professional development to support 
regional collaboration and project implementation, which may include training for 
School Partners on CCGI’s California Cradle-to-Career Data System.  

16.3



4 
Updated 2022.11.29 

3.3 OCDE will provide OCDE staff positions to oversee project implementation and 
convene key faculty and staff across the priority industry sectors to build 
occupational pathways to successfully increase work-based learning from high 
school through postsecondary institutions and into the workforce. 

3.4 OCDE will serve as the fiscal agent for the K-16 Grant Program and oversee: 
3.4.1 Timelines of all Career Education projects and initiatives; 
3.4.2 Completion of evaluations; and, 
3.4.3 Program and fiscal reports. 

4. RESPONSIBILITIES OF SCHOOL PARTNERS
4.1. Data Sharing Agreement:

4.1.1. Each School Partner must be a party to the Data Sharing Agreement and 
understand that participation in the Data Sharing Agreement is a required 
condition to participate in this Service Agreement and the K-16 Grant 
Program. 

4.1.2. School Partners agree that they will not terminate their participation in the 
Data Sharing Agreement for the duration of this Service Agreement. 

4.2. California Cradle-to-Career Data System:  
4.2.1. School Partners agree to participate in the California Cradle-to-Career 

Data System’s operational tool and understand that such participation is 
required in order to participate in the K-16 Grant Program.  

4.2.2. By March 15, 2023, each School Partner will independently enter into a 
separate data sharing agreement with CCGI. 

4.2.3. By July 1, 2023, and/or as provided in their separate Data Sharing 
Agreement with CCGI, School Partners will complete initial alignment 
process with CCGI and upload the initial data files to the Cradle-to-Career 
Data System.  

4.3. Work-Based Learning Technician: 
4.3.1. School Partners will employ and/or designate a Work-Based Learning 

Technician that adheres to the job description outlined by OCDE/OC 
Pathways and included as Addendum G, to oversee initiatives and 
projects.   

4.3.2. The Work-Based Learning Technician will be required to: 
4.3.2.1. Attend monthly meetings to provide progress and to receive 

ongoing technical assistance. 
4.3.2.2. Attend regional collaboration meetings designed to support 

clean data collection and systems that align each School 
Partner’s Goals.  

4.4. School Partners are required to customize and complete an Orange County 
Regional K16 Education Collaborative Project Proposal (Project Proposal) 
template that includes project goals, milestones, and a timeline for project 
deliverables.  Project Proposals must include the following information: 
4.4.1. Identify at least one or more of the following CTE Pathway(s) for 

purposes of the K-16 Grant Program: (1) Healthcare; (2) Education; (3) 
Business Management; and (4) Engineering/Computing.   

16.4



5 
Updated 2022.11.29 

4.4.2. Tasks, activities and/or efforts to recruit and retain underserved students 
through inclusive supports as described in the Recovery with Equity 
Report.  
4.4.2.1. “Underserved or underrepresented” students include: first 

generation college students, low-income students, students who 
are current or former foster youth, homeless students or those 
at risk of becoming homeless, students with disabilities, 
displaced workers, students with dependent children, formerly 
incarcerated students, undocumented students, students 
meeting the requirements of Assembly Bill 540 of the 2001–
2002 Regular Session of the Legislature, students who are 
veterans, and academically low-achieving students. 

4.4.2.2. Inclusive supports may include expanding programs that 
promote students’ representation and sense of belongings (e.g., 
identity-based resource centers, outreach programs, etc.). 

4.5. School Partners are required to complete and submit ongoing performance and 
progress reports to OCDE, as follows: 
4.5.1. K-16 Grant Program Narrative Reports (Narrative Reports), which shall 

include: 
4.5.1.1. Narrative describing progress towards project goals and 

milestones, lessons learned, challenges and steps taken to 
overcome challenges.  

4.5.1.2. If any planned activity or milestone are not on track for 
completion by the required deadline, the School Partner must 
provide a written explanation describing how the School 
Partner will resolve the issues and make appropriate course 
corrections to ensure timely completion of all required 
activities.   

4.5.1.3. All data that may be deemed necessary for purposes of 
reporting progress and performance related to the K-16 Grant 
Program to the State, which may include information described 
in the Data Reporting Guidelines.  

4.5.2. K-16 Grant Program Data Reports (Data Reports), which shall include 
specified data metrics as determined by the State.  Data Reports should be 
disaggregated by student ethnicity and socio-economic status and 
highlight each of the selected pathways in the School Partner’s Project 
Proposal.  Data elements may include enrollment, retention, and 
completion.   

4.5.3. K-16 Grant Program Budget Reports (Budget Reports), which shall 
include detailed listing of projected expenditures.  Workforce Partners 
must complete the K-16 Budget Reports by using the Budget Worksheet 
template provided by OCDE, an example of the K-16 Budget Worksheet 
template is included as Addendum H.  

4.5.4. K-16 Grant Program Expenditure Reports (Expenditure Reports), which 
shall include all expenditures by warrant numbers, invoice dates, invoice 
payees, invoice amounts, general ledger object code, and specific 

16.5



6 
Updated 2022.11.29 

descriptions of the expenditures.  Workforce Partners must complete the 
K-16 Expenditure Reports by using the Expenditure Worksheet template
provided by OCDE, an example of the K-16 Expenditure Worksheet
template is included as Addendum I.
4.5.4.1. The description of expenditures must provide sufficient detail

for the Office of Public School Construction to verify that all 
project expenditures are permissible and that the expenditures 
have been recorded in the proper cost categories.   

4.5.4.2. School Partners shall maintain a rationale for the amount 
equipment purchased (i.e. computers, laptops, furniture, desks) 
and pro-rate methodology if invoices or contract includes items 
not aligned with this Service Agreement. 

4.6. Reporting Schedule 
4.6.1. Workforce Partners are required to complete and submit Narrative 

Reports, Data Reports, Budget Reports and Expenditures Reports in 
accordance with the Regional K-16 Education Collaborative Grant 
Program Reporting Schedule and Deadlines (Reporting Schedule), which 
is incorporated by reference and included as Addendum J.  

5. RESPONSIBILITIES OF WORKFORCE PARTNERS
5.1 By June 30, 2023 and updated annually, Workforce Partners will customize and

complete a K16 Collaborative Choice Board template developed by OCDE.
5.2 K16 Collaborative Choice Boards must include, but is not limited to, the

following: 
5.2.1 Work-based learning opportunities to Orange County students, which may 

include fieldtrip/worksite visits, job shadowing, mentoring, internships, 
pre-apprenticeships and apprenticeships.   

5.2.2 Development, expansion and promotion of industry-recognized 
certifications. 

5.2.3 Job placement offers in local high-skill, high-wage, high-demand jobs.  
5.3 Workforce Partners are required to complete and submit ongoing performance 

and progress reports to OCDE, as follows: 
5.3.1 K-16 Grant Program Narrative Reports (Narrative Reports), which shall

include: 
5.3.1.1 Narrative describing progress towards project goals and 

milestones, lessons learned, challenges and steps taken to 
overcome challenges.   

5.3.1.2 If any planned activity or milestone are not on track for 
completion by the required deadline, the Workforce Partner 
must provide a written explanation describing how the 
Workforce Partner will resolve the issues and make appropriate 
course corrections to ensure timely completion of all required 
activities.   

5.3.1.3 All data that may be deemed necessary for purposes of 
reporting progress and performance related to the K-16 Grant 

16.6



7 
Updated 2022.11.29 

Program to the State, which may include information described 
in the Data Reporting Guidelines.  

5.3.2 K-16 Grant Program Data Reports (Data Reports), which shall include 
specified data metrics as determined by the State.  Data Reports should be 
disaggregated by student ethnicity and socio-economic status and 
highlight the outcomes selected from the Workforce Partner’s Choice 
Board.   

5.3.3 K-16 Budget Reports, which shall include detailed listing of projected 
expenditures.  Workforce Partners must complete the K-16 Budget 
Reports by using the Budget Worksheet template provided by OCDE, an 
example of the K-16 Budget Worksheet template is included as 
Addendum H.  

5.3.4 K-16 Expenditure Reports, which shall include all expenditures by warrant 
numbers, invoice dates, invoice payees, invoice amounts, general ledger 
object code, and specific descriptions of the expenditures.  Workforce 
Partners must complete the K-16 Expenditure Reports by using the 
Expenditure Worksheet template provided by OCDE, an example of the 
K-16 Expenditure Worksheet template is included as Addendum I.
5.3.4.1 The description of expenditures must provide sufficient detail

for the Office of Public School Construction to verify that all 
project expenditures are permissible and that the expenditures 
have been recorded in the proper cost categories.   

5.3.4.2 Workforce Partners shall maintain a rationale for the amount 
equipment purchased (i.e. computers, laptops, furniture, desks) 
and pro-rate methodology if invoices or contract includes items 
not aligned with this Service Agreement. 

5.4 Reporting Schedule 
5.4.1 Workforce Partners are required to complete and submit Narrative 

Reports, Data Reports, Budget Reports and Expenditures Reports in 
accordance with the Regional K-16 Education Collaborative Grant 
Program Reporting Schedule and Deadlines (Reporting Schedule), which 
is incorporated by reference and included as Addendum J.  

6. FUNDING
6.1 Partners may receive grant funds up to the amount allocated to each Partner as

provided in the K-16 Grant Program Final Awards Allocation (Awards 
Allocation), which is incorporated by reference and included as Addendum K.  

6.2 Fund releases are contingent upon Partners submitting all required reports that 
document adequate progress consistent with OCDE’s state-approved work plan as 
well as compliance with all other aspects of the K-16 Grant Program and this 
Service Agreement.  

6.3 Progress delays in implementation and/or execution of the goals in the approved 
work plan may result in subsequent installments being withheld in whole or in 
part until a reasonable plan to address lack of progress is submitted by the 
Partners. If a reasonable plan cannot be developed and implemented as 

16.7



8 
Updated 2022.11.29 

determined by OCDE, all, or a part of the subsequent fund releases may be 
forfeited. 

6.4 In the event the subsequent fund releases are forfeited, and funds remain from the 
first installment, a final expenditure compliance review will be conducted to 
determine if return of unspent or ineligible funds is necessary. 

7. EXPENDITURES
7.1 Partners may seek reimbursement from OCDE for eligible expenditures, which

may include, but is not limited to, the following:  
7.1.1 Additional or new staffing costs directly associated with the tasks outlined 

in scope of work for the grant including salaries and benefits.  
7.1.1.1 For positions that will partially support the grant program but 

have other tasks, Partners shall provide the pro-rate 
methodology used.  

7.1.1.2 The pro-rate methodology shall be subject to review and 
approval by the State. Alternatively, Partners may provide 
actual timesheet records documenting the time allocated to this 
project. 

7.1.2 Materials costs 
7.1.3 Costs associated with establishment or updating of a website to promote 

the K-16 Grant Program.  
7.1.4 Non-student travel expenses directly associated with the tasks outlined in 

the scope of work (lodging, airfare, car rental, meal reimbursement). 
Travel expenses shall be limited to the reimbursement rates used by the 
State of California and published on the California Human Resources 
website 

7.1.5 Activities of an academic or cultural nature, such as field trips, special 
lectures, and symposiums, that are aligned with the K-16 Grant Program’s 
objectives 

7.1.6 Costs associated with events for the purposes of professional development, 
or training 

7.1.7 Training materials, software, and curriculum 
7.2 Ineligible Expenditures include, but is not limited to, the following: 

7.2.1 Indirect costs are not permissible. Indirect costs include general 
administrative functions to support the K-16 Grant Program that do not tie 
directly to grant activities, such as accounting and administrative support.  

7.2.2 Long-term, and on-going operating costs (i.e. salaries, website hosting 
fees, software licensing, etc.) incurred by Partners that continue beyond 
June 30, 2026. 

7.2.3 Partners shall not use any of the funds from the K-16 Grant Program to 
carry on propaganda, or otherwise attempting, to influence legislation, 
influencing the outcome of any specific public election, carrying on, 
directly or indirectly, any voter registration drive, inducing or encouraging 
violations of law or public policy, or causing any private inurement or 
improper private benefit to occur. 

16.8



9 
Updated 2022.11.29 

7.2.4 Food and drink, except for meal reimbursement that is part of eligible 
travel costs as noted above 

7.2.5 For any cost or item that cannot be classified in one of the above 
categories, the Partner is advised to consult with OCDE prior to incurring 
the cost to determine eligibility. Costs not associated with the approved 
budget will be considered ineligible. 

7.3 Partners shall retain supporting documentation such as general ledger reports, 
contracts, invoices, purchase orders, and timesheets/duty statements to support the 
expenditures; and provide copies upon request to grant auditors. 

8. RECORDS MANAGEMENT AND MAINTENANCE
8.1 Throughout the term of this Service Agreement, each Partner will:

8.1.1 Prepare, maintain and manage records appropriate to the services provided 
and in accordance with this Service Agreement and all applicable 
requirements. 

8.1.2 Ensure appropriate financial records related to cost reporting, expenditure, 
revenue, billings, etc., are prepared and maintained accurately and 
appropriately. 

8.1.3 Retain all financial records for a minimum of three (3) years after the 
completion of the activities for which the funds are used and until audit 
findings are resolved, or due to legal proceedings such as litigations and/or 
settlement of claims whichever is longer. 

8.1.4 Notify OCDE of any Public Record Act (PRA) requests related to services 
provided herein within seventy-two (72) hours of receipt of said request.  
Upon request by OCDE, Partner will provide OCDE with all information 
that is requested and provided by the Partner. 

9. INSPECTION AND AUDITS
9.1 OCDE and the State of California or any other of their authorized representatives,

shall have access to any books, documents, and records, including but not limited 
to, financial statements, general ledgers, relevant accounting systems of each 
Partner that are directly pertinent to this Service Agreement, for the purpose of 
responding to a beneficiary complaint or conducting an audit, review, evaluation, 
or examination during the term of this Service Agreement.  Such persons may at 
all reasonable times inspect or otherwise evaluate the services provided pursuant 
to this Service Agreement, and the premises in which they are provided. 

10. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS
10.1 Each Partner is, and shall at all times be deemed to be, an independent contractor

and shall be wholly responsible for the manner in which it performs the services 
required of it by the terms of this Service Agreement. 

10.2 Each Partner is entirely responsible for compensating staff, subcontractors, and 
consultants employed by the Partner.  This Service Agreement shall not be 
construed as creating the relationship of employer and employee, or principal and 
agent between OCDE and any of the Partners or any of the Partners’ employees, 
agents, consultants, or subcontractors.   

16.9



10 
Updated 2022.11.29 

10.3 The Partners understands and agrees that their employees, consultants, or 
subcontractors, shall not be considered officers, employees or agents of OCDE, 
and are not entitled to benefits of any kind or nature normally provided employees 
of OCDE and/or to which OCDE employees are normally entitled, including, but 
not limited to, State Unemployment Insurance or Workers' Compensation. Each 
Partner shall assume full responsibility for payment of all federal, state and local 
taxes or contributions, including unemployment insurance, social security and 
income taxes with respect to each Partners’ employees. 

10.4 Each Partner assumes exclusively the responsibility for the acts of its employees, 
agents, consultants, or subcontractors as they relate to the services to be provided 
during the course and scope of their employment.   

11. INDEMNIFICATION
11.1 Each Party to this Service Agreement agrees to defend, indemnify, and hold each

other Party in this Data Sharing Agreement, and its officers, employees, and 
agents harmless from and against any liability, loss, expense (including attorneys’ 
fees), or claims of injury or damages arising out of the performance of the terms 
of this Service Agreement but only in proportion to and to the extent such 
liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or claims for injury or damages are caused 
by or result from the negligent or intentional acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying educational institution, and/or its officers, employees or agents. 

12. GENERAL PROVISIONS
12.1 Assignment: None of the signatories to this Service Agreement may assign their

rights, duties, or obligations under this Service Agreement, either in whole or in 
part, without the prior written consent of the other signatories to this Service 
Agreement. 

12.2 Copyright: OCDE and the State of California shall have a royalty-free, 
nonexclusive, and irrevocable license to publish, translate, or use now and 
continuing all material and work product (both tangible and intangible), if any, 
developed under this Service Agreement including those materials covered by 
copyright. 

12.3 Severability: If any provision of this Service Agreement is held to be illegal, 
invalid, or unenforceable under present or future laws effective during the term of 
this Service Agreement such provision shall be fully severable. This Service 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unaffected by such severance, 
provided that the severed provision(s) are not material to the overall purpose and 
operation of this Service Agreement. 

12.4 Waiver: Waiver by any signatory to this Service Agreement of any breach of any 
provision of this Service Agreement set forth herein shall not be construed as a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other provision. The failure 
to exercise any right under this Service Agreement shall not operate as a waiver of 
such right. All rights and remedies provided for in this Service Agreement are 
cumulative. 

12.5 Modification and Amendments: This Service Agreement may be amended or 
modified at any time by mutual agreement of the authorized representatives of the 

16.10



11 
Updated 2022.11.29 

signatories to this Service Agreement. The Parties further agree to amend this 
Service Agreement to the extent amendments are required by an applicable law or 
policy issued by an appropriate regulatory authority if the amendment does not 
materially affect the provisions of this Service Agreement. However, if new laws, 
policies, or regulations applicable to the Parties are implemented which materially 
affect the intent of the provision of this Service Agreement, the authorized 
representatives of the signatories to this MOU shall meet within a reasonable 
period of time, e.g. 20 business days from the date of notice of such change of 
law, policy, or regulations, to confer regarding how and/or if those laws, policies, 
or regulations will be applied or excepted. 

12.6 Nondiscrimination: In the performance of this Service Agreement, the Partners 
shall not engage in, nor permit any employee or agent to engage in discrimination 
in employment of person or provision of services or assistance, nor exclude any 
person from participation in, nor deny any person the benefits of, not subject any 
person to discrimination under any program or activity funded in whole or in part 
by this Service Agreement on the grounds of race, religion, color, national origin, 
ancestry, physical handicap, medical condition, marital status, gender or sexual 
orientation.  The Parties shall comply with Title II of the Americans with 
Disabilities Act, (42 U.S.C., {12101, et seq.) as it relates to public 
accommodations. 

13. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT
13.1 Termination:  The Parties shall have the right to terminate this Service Agreement

for any reason or no reason, at any time by providing the Parties with written 
notice of termination in accordance with Section 14 of this Service Agreement at 
least thirty (30) calendar days in advance. 

13.2 Termination for Funding Contingency: It is mutually understood and agreed that 
if OCDE does not receive sufficient grant funding from the State of California to 
provide the Service described in this Service Agreement, OCDE may without 
penalty, terminate this Service Agreement by providing the Partners with written 
notice of termination of this Service Agreement at least fifteen (15) calendar days 
in advance of the Termination Date. 

14. NOTICES
14.1 All notices, requests, claims correspondence, or reports authorized or required by

this Service Agreement and/or other communications shall be addressed to the 
School Partners as provided in Addendum A, Workforce Partners as provided in 
Addendum B and OCDE as follows: 

Orange County Superintendent of Schools  
200 Kalmus Drive  
PO Box 9050 
Costa Mesa, California 92628-9050 
Attn: Patricia McCaughey 

15. ADDENDA

16.11



16.12



13 
Updated 2022.11.29 

HUNTINGTON BEACH UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:    

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

BREA OLINDA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

CAPISTRANO UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

GARDEN GROVE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

IRVINE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.13



14 
Updated 2022.11.29 

LAGUNA BEACH UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

LOS ALAMITOS UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

NEWPORT-MESA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

ORANGE UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

PLACENTIA-YORBA LINDA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.14



15 
Updated 2022.11.29 

SADDLEBACK VALLEY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

SANTA ANA UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

TUSTIN UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:   

COLLEGE AND CAREER ADVANTAGE 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:   

16.15



16 
Updated 2022.11.29 

NORTH ORANGE COUNTY REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:   

COAST COMMUNIITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
COASTLINE COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

NORTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
CYPRESS COLLEGE 

By:  

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

NORTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
FULLERTON COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
GOLDEN WEST COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:  

16.16



17 
Updated 2022.11.29 

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
IRVINE VALLEY COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

COAST COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
ORANGE COAST COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

SOUTH ORANGE COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT 
SADDLEBACK COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
SANTA ANA COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

RANCHO SANTIAGO COMMUNITY COLLEGE DISTRICT DBA 
SANTIAGO CANYON COLLEGE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.17



18 
Updated 2022.11.29 

CSU FULLERTON AUXILIARY SERVICES CORPORATION 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

THE REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA 
UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA, IRVINE 

By: 

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

BIG BROTHERS BIG SISTER OF ORANGE COUNTY 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

CEO LEARDERSHIP OF ORANGE COUNTY 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

CYBERFORWARD 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.18



19 
Updated 2022.11.29 

DREAMS FOR SCHOOLS 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

EXP THE OPPORTUNITY ENGINE 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

FUTURO HEALTH 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

POSEIDON EDUCATION 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

UNITED WAY ORANGE COUNTY 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.19



20 
Updated 2022.11.29 

VITAL LINK 

By:   

Print Name:  
Title:    
Date:    

16.20





1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Brian Dozer 

DATE:  December 7, 2022 

SUBJECT: Approval – Position Title & Classification Change 

Background.  Over many years, the responsibilities associated with the processing and 
delivery of supplies and equipment to our various school sites have been shared 
between our Accounts Payable/Purchasing Specialist and our Facility Maintenance and 
Custodian Worker.  The workload for each of these positions has increased significantly 
over the past couple of years, particularly over the past several months, given the 
substantial amount of grant funding that we have secured. We expect to continue to 
receive a significant amount of grant funding in the months ahead, which will only 
increase that workload. 

In January 2022, the board approved the creation of a part-time Receiving and Delivery 
Worker position to assist us with meeting this need. For various reasons, we were 
unable to fill this position. The decision was made to hire a custodial company to 
provide custodial services to our campus so that the Facility Maintenance and 
Custodian Worker could have more time to assist with the purchasing and delivery 
needs of the organization. 

Since that time, the Facility Maintenance and Custodian Worker has exceeded the 
expectations of that role and has proved to be invaluable to our organization. It has 
become evident that this position will be an ongoing need for years to come. Given this 
fact, we believe it is necessary to revise the position description for the Facility 
Maintenance and Custodian Worker to better reflect the current responsibilities and 
expectations of the position. Along with the revision to the job description, we believe it 
is necessary to revise the job title and pay classification range as well.   

Financial Implication.  The estimated annual cost of this position reclassification is 
approximately $5,319.60 exclusive of benefits.   

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the 
reclassification of the Facility Maintenance and Custodian Worker to the Facility 
Maintenance/Receiving and Delivery Worker position retroactive to July 1, 2022. 

17.0



FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND CUSTODIAN WORKER   2 

Coastline Regional Occupational Program 

Job Description 

FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND CUSTODIAN WORKER 

FACILITY MAINTENANCE/RECEIVING AND DELIVERY WORKER 

Location: Technology Services 

Reports To: Manager, Technology and Facilities 

Supervises: N/A 

Pay Classification: 107 114 

Revision Date: 9-12-19    5-27-20    10-21-2020

GENERAL DESCRIPTION 

Perform a variety of general duties involved in the cleaning, standard disinfection, maintenance, and 

repair of Coastline ROP-designated facilities, utilities, grounds, and equipment, and the receiving, 

processing, and delivery of supplies and equipment. 

Duties and Responsibilities: 

CUSTODIAN WORKER EXAMPLE OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

• Clean and sanitize door handles, desks, telephones, copier keypads, cupboard doors, restroom

stall doors/handles/locks, toilets and toilet handles faucets, front of the microwave, refrigerator

door handles water dispenser levers, and other frequently touched areas.

• Operate cleaning equipment, such as vacuums, floor cleaning and polishing machines, scrubbers,
etc.; sweep, mop, scrub, wax, refinish, and polish all floors, doors, and baseboards.

• Clean window glass, water dispensers, refrigerators dry-erase boards, furniture, windowsills, and
blinds.

• Sweep, scrub, dust, and otherwise clean areas such as classrooms, restrooms, kitchens, offices,

and related facilities.

• Vacuum rugs and carpets; dust furniture, empty and clean trash receptacles.

RECEIVING & DELIVERY WORKER EXAMPLE OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

• Receive and process orders for materials, equipment, and supplies; inspect orders for accuracy,

completeness, and condition.

• Perform record-keeping duties in support of the purchasing department; maintain a purchasing

and delivery log.

• Communicate with other departments and staff to exchange information and coordinate

activities; follow up with departments to verify information and receipt of orders.

• Prepare materials, equipment, and supplies for delivery to different school sites.

• Responsible for the safe and timely delivery of materials, equipment, and supplies to different
school sites.

• Ensure that needed signatures are received for each delivery.

• Responsible for inventory tagging applicable items and providing that information to the Business

Services Department.
17.1



FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND CUSTODIAN WORKER   2 

• Work closely with the Purchasing Specialist on resolving issues regarding the receiving and
delivery of items.

• Safely operate a vehicle to conduct deliveries; responsible for the fueling and maintenance of that
vehicle.

• Operate a variety of office equipment including a copier, fax machine, computer, and assigned

software.

• Attend and participate in meetings.

• Perform other duties as assigned.

FACILITY MAINTENANCE WORKER EXAMPLE OF DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES: 

• Perform a variety of general duties involved in the maintenance, cleaning, and repair of
designated facilities, utilities, grounds, and equipment; perform minor semi-skilled tasks in
electrical, HVAC, carpentry, gardening, plumbing, and painting; ensure a safe environment for

students and staff.

• Move and arrange furniture and equipment; maintain, repair, and assemble cabinets, bookcases,

and a variety of other furniture and equipment; prepare various surfaces for painting and apply

paint as needed; repair and install locks and security devices.

• Inspect grounds and buildings to ensure the safety and health of staff and students; replace light
bulbs and ballasts; perform minor electrical repairs such as repairing or replacing wiring, fixtures,

switches, receptacles, and lighting circuits.

• Perform regular safety checks of facilities to ensure compliance with established laws, codes, and

regulations; check fire extinguishers and smoke alarms to ensure proper operation as assigned;

service and perform minor repairs and adjustments on equipment.

• Operate and maintain a variety of maintenance equipment, including a variety of hand and power

tools; drive a vehicle to conduct work.

• Perform minor plumbing duties as necessary; inspect and repair leaks, obstructions, and general

system failures.

• Organize and lay out assigned tasks; estimate time, material, and equipment need for assigned

projects; participate in minor renovation projects in designated facilities.

• Lock and unlock doors and gates as directed; turn lights on and off; maintain the security of

assigned areas according to established guidelines.

• Monitor inventory levels of maintenance supplies as required; assist with ordering, receiving, and

maintaining inventory of supplies as assigned; receive and deliver supplies and equipment.

QUALIFICATION GUIDELINES 

Knowledge of: 

• Knowledge of cleaning and disinfecting methods, materials, and equipment, including

sterilization and sanitary methods.

• Appropriate safety precautions and procedures including those related to cleaning and

disinfecting, sterilization, chemicals, and sanitary methods.

• General methods, materials, tools, terminology, and equipment used in the building and grounds

maintenance trades.

• Proper methods of storing equipment, materials, and supplies.

• Requirements of maintaining facilities, utilities, and equipment in good repair.

• Operation of a variety of hand and power tools and equipment.

17.2



FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND CUSTODIAN WORKER   2 

• Basic inventory methods, terminology, and practices

• Basic computer skills for email and documentation.

• Applicable laws, rules, and regulations related to assigned activities.

• Telephone techniques and etiquette.

• Organization and coordination techniques utilized in purchasing.

• Modern office practices, procedures, and equipment.

• Basic record-keeping techniques.

• Oral and written communication skills.

• Proper lifting techniques.

Ability to: 

• Safely use and apply cleaning agents (includes proper use of recommended chemicals and

procedures), equipment, and materials.

• Perform a variety of general duties involved in the maintenance and repair of designated facilities,

utilities, grounds, and equipment.

• Receive and respond to routine maintenance requests.

• Operate a wide variety of hand and power tools and equipment.

• Move, maintain, repair, and assemble furniture and equipment.

• Perform minor electrical and HVAC maintenance, replacements, and repairs.

• Prepare various surfaces for painting and apply paint.

• Replace light bulbs and ballasts.

• Inspect and repair leaks, obstructions, and general plumbing system failures.

• Observe health and safety regulations.

• Maintain routine records related to work performed.

• Understand and follow written and oral instructions.

• Work cooperatively with others.

• Perform heavy physical labor.

• Perform a variety of clerical and record-keeping duties in support of the Business Services and

Technology and Facilities departments.

• Receive and respond to routine receiving and delivery questions and requests.

• Process and record purchasing and delivery log accurately.

• Operate standard office equipment including a computer and assigned software.

• Communicate effectively both orally and in writing.

• Learn receiving and delivery policies, practices, and terminology.

• Meet schedules and timelines.

Education and Experience: 

Required: Graduation from high school, or equivalent. 

Experience:  Minimum of one year of experience in the maintenance, and repair of buildings and grounds 
and the receiving and delivery of supplies and equipment.   

Other Requirements:  

Licenses:  Valid California Class C Driver’s License with proof of a clean driving record (provided by 

DMV). 

17.3



FACILITY MAINTENANCE AND CUSTODIAN WORKER   2 

PHYSICAL ELEMENTS AND WORKING CONDITIONS 

The work environment characteristics described here are representative of those an employee encounters 

while performing the essential functions of this job. Reasonable accommodations may be made to enable 

individuals with disabilities to perform essential functions.  

• Dexterity of hands and fingers to operate a variety of tools and equipment.

• Hearing and speaking to exchange information.

• Seeing to perform maintenance and janitorial duties.

• Lifting, carrying, pushing, or pulling heavy objects as assigned by the position.

• Reaching overhead, above the shoulders, and horizontally.

• Bending at the waist, stooping, kneeling, or crouching.

• Climbing ladders and working from heights.

• Walking or standing for extended periods of time.

WORKING CONDITIONS: 

• Indoor and outdoor work environment.

• Regular exposure to fumes, dust, dirt, and oil/grease.

• Seasonal heat and cold or adverse weather conditions.

• Lift and or move up to 50 pounds; lifting, carrying pushing, or pulling heavy objects up to 100

pounds with assistance.

HAZARDS: 

• Working around and with machinery having moving parts.

• Working at heights.

• Exposure to fumes and chemicals.

• Working with cleaning agents, chemicals, equipment, and materials.

17.4





1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian Dozer, Superintendent 

TO: Brian Dozer 

FROM: Siteria Edwards 

DATE:  December 7, 2022 

SUBJECT: Compensation Schedule Revision 

Issue:  

Effective January 1, 2023, the California minimum wage will increase due to the high 
inflation rate in the past year, and the Facility Maintenance and Custodian Worker job 
description and pay classification was revised to reflect the proposed reclassification of 
the position.    

Summary of Revisions: 

The minimum hourly rate increased from $15.00 to $15.50 hr., for the 
receptionist/administrative assistant, classified substitute, and skills helper positions. 

The Facility Maintenance and Custodian Worker position was revised to Facility 
Maintenance/Receiving and Delivery Worker pending board approval of reclassification.  

Financial Implication: 

1. Receptionist/Administrative Assistant – No employees are impacted by the
minimum wage increase.

2. Classified Substitute – Hours are paid as needed.

3. Skills Helper – Hours are paid as needed.

4. Facility Maintenance/Receiving and Delivery Worker – Title and pay classification
changed from pay range 107 to 114.

Recommendation: 

It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the revision to the 
compensation schedule. 

18.0



Upon employment by Coastline ROP, initial salary placement in all categories of service will be based on

education and related experience.  The Superintendent will determine the intial placement in the appropriate 

classification.

appropriate classification.

appropriate classification.

CERTIFICATED TEACHER PAY SCHEDULE:

Displays the minimum/maximum hourly rate range in the appropriate classification.

Displays the minimum/maximum daily rate and annual salary range based on 223 days of service in the 

appropriate classification.

LEADERSHIP PAY SCHEDULE:

Displays the minimum/maximum monthly and annual salary range based on 260 days of service in the 

CERTIFICATED SUPPORT PAY SCHEDULE:

DRAFT
COMPENSATION SYSTEM

The compensation system of Coastline Regional Occupational Program pertains to all job classifications, 

both classifed and certificated.  The pay schedules include appropriate job titles and pay schedule range 

assignments.

PAY SCHEDULE INFORMATION

CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE: 

Displays the minimum/maximum hourly and monthly rate range based on 260 days of service in the  

appropriate classification.

CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT PAY SCHEDULE:  

Displays the minimum/maximum monthly and annual salary range based on 260 days of service in the 

18.1



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Accounting Budgeting Specialist 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Accounting Payroll Specialist 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Accounts Payable/Purchasing Specialist 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Administrative Assistant 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Career Specialist 120 $21.60 $29.01 na na

College and Career Specialist 120 $21.60 $29.01 na na

Executive Assistant 127 $25.67 $34.48 $4,449 $5,977

Facility Maintenance/Custodian Receiving & Delivery Worker 107 114 15.68 $18.62 21.04 $25.02 na na

Information Technology Specialist 124 $23.84 $32.02 $4,132 $5,550

Instructional Assistant 108 $16.06 $21.57 na na

K-12 SWP Pathway Coordinator (Grant Funded) 131 $35.52 $47.60 $6,157 $8,251

Work-Based Learning/Outreach Specialist (Grant Funded) 130 $26.33 $37.14 $4,564 $6,438

Network Specialist 124 $23.84 $32.02 $4,132 $5,550

Program Assistant 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Receptionist/Admnistrative Assistant 103 $15.50 $19.07 $2,687 $3,305

Receiving and Delivery Worker (Grant Funded) 107 $15.68 $21.04 na na

Student Information Specialist 119 $21.07 $28.30 $3,652 $4,905

Classified Substitute $15.50 per hour

Classified Substitute (Career Specialist) $18.00 per hour

Skills Helper $15.50 per hour

Skills Helper (American Heart Association Certified Instructor) $20.00 per hour

MONTHLY RATEHOURLY RATE

OTHER CLASSIFIED PAY INFORMATION

CLASSIFIED PAY SCHEDULE

18.2



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Manager, Technology Services 510 $6,158 $8,252 $73,890 $99,019

Page 02

MONTHLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

CLASSIFIED MANAGEMENT PAY SCHEDULE

18.3



JOB TITLE
(Min) (Max)

American Heart Association (AHA) Instructor $30.00 n/a

CHAPERONE I (PARTIAL DAY) $50 DAY n/a

CHAPERONE II (FULL DAY) $100 DAY n/a

Mentor Teacher Regular hourly rate plus 5% n/a

Substitute Teacher I $33.00 n/a

Substitute Teacher II (long-term) plus 25% preparation time $33.00 + 25% prep n/a

Special Project Assignment $30.00 n/a

Teacher $34.13 $70.00

HOURLY RATE

CERTIFICATED TEACHER PAY SCHEDULE

Page 03

CERTIFICATED PAY RATE INFORMATION

American Heart Association Instructor - regular and substitute teachers for the ROP will be paid at the AHA hourly 
rate.

Chaperone I - teachers serving as a chaperone after regular school hours, shall receive the established flat rate for the 
remainder of the day.

Chaperone II - teachers serving as a chaperone on a non-school day in which no salary was earned shall receive the 
established flat rate for the entire day.  

Substitute Teaching  - teachers working as a substitute will be paid their established hourly pay rate.

Mentor Teacher  - teachers working as mentors will be paid their current hourly rate multiplied by five percent (5%). 

Substitute II (Long-term Substitute) - substitute teachers who work for a period of at least 20 consecutive teaching days 
in the same teaching assignment will receive the Substitute Teacher II (long-term) rate. 

Special Project Assignment - teachers will receive the special projects rate for non-instructional, staff development or 
special project assignments.

Preparation Time - the established preparation time percentage is twenty-five percent (25%). 

18.4



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

(223 Work Days)

Administrator, Educational Services 513 $383.57 $514.02 $85,536 $114,627

Coordinator, Educational Services 512 $347.91 $489.54 $77,584 $109,168

Instructional Support/Media Specialist 507 $286.23 $383.57 $63,829 $85,536

Page 04

DAILY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

CERTIFICATED SUPPORT STAFF PAY SCHEDULE

18.5



JOB TITLE PAY

CLASSIFICATION (Min) (Max) (Min) (Max)

Administrator, Human Resources 515 $7,859 $10,531 $94,304 $126,376

Director, Business Services 519 $9,552 $12,801 $114,627 $153,612

Director, Educational Services 519 $9,552 $12,801 $114,627 $153,612

Superintendent 524 $12,191 $16,338 $146,296 $196,056

Page 05

LEADERSHIP PAY SCHEDULE

MONTHLY RATE ANNUAL SALARY

18.6





Participating School Districts:      Huntington Beach Union / Irvine / Newport-Mesa / Saddleback Valley / Tustin Unified 

Board of Trustees:    Diana Carey / Lauren Brooks / Michelle Barto / Suzie Swartz / Lynn Davis 

1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees  

FROM: Brian Dozer  

DATE:  December 7, 2021 

SUBJECT: Memorandum of Understanding for CyberForward program 

Coastline ROP has the opportunity to partner with CyberForward (formerly 
CISOSHARE), a leading provider of cybersecurity services in Orange County, to offer a 
program in the Spring 2023 semester for students in our five partnering districts. 
CyberForward will be a thirteen-week virtual course and will include instruction on the 
foundations of cybersecurity, a work-based learning experience, and will culminate in an 
internship with a local company for some students. This unique opportunity will be open 
to 30 students. Currently, ten Coastline ROP students who completed CyberForward 
are working with CyberForward as interns. Mike Gentile, the founder and CEO of 
CISOSHARE and CyberForward, will teach the course. Additionally, CyberForward will 
host three virtual information sessions in late December 2022 and early January 2023.  

The cost to the ROP is $40,000, and we plan to use CTEIG 7 grant funds for the 
associated expenses.  

It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve the attached 
Memorandum of Understanding with CyberForward. 

19.0



pg. 1 

Memorandum of Understanding Concerning the Establishment of a High School 

Cyber Security Education Program Partnership 

Between  

CYBERFORWARD  

and 

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

I. Purpose

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between CYBERFORWARD

located at 1315 N. El Camino Real, San Clemente, CA 92672 and Coastline

Regional Occupational Program (Coastline ROP) located at 1001 Presidio

Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92801, collectively referred to as “Parties”, is to

provide the cooperative framework for the CYBERFORWARD and Coastline

ROP to develop initiatives and provide Cyber Security education and work-

based learning experiences for high school students.

II. Parties

The parties to this MOU are CYBERFORWARD whose mission through the

CyberForward program is to solve the cyber security resource shortage and

bridge the skills gap by identifying and rapidly developing effective, job-

ready, cyber security professionals; and Coastline ROP whose mission is to

prepare students to be contributing members of their community by providing

innovative career technical education focused on college and career readiness.

III. Objectives

The objective of the MOU is to establish a robust collaborative working

partnership that fosters collaboration, between CYBERFORWARD’s

Program and Coastline ROP to the extent that such coordination, collaboration

and resource sharing is consistent with applicable laws, regulations, and

policies, to support their respective missions and to achieve the parties’

common aim to provide career technical education and work-based learning

opportunities to high school students in the field of Cyber Security.

IV. Responsibilities of the Parties

Per availability of resources, both parties shall be responsible for contributing

to the objectives cited in this Agreement and shall contribute to this

partnership, as appropriate.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.1



pg. 2 

A. CYBERFORWARD’s Responsibilities:

1. Provide a license to use CyberForward training curriculum AND program

delivery of 13 weeks (90 hours) to include:

a. Foundational Learning

b. Work-based Learning

c. Internship Project

2. Provide the Canvas and Zoom platform for the virtual program delivery.

3. Provide the appropriate instructor for the CyberForward training and

deliver training for up to thirty (30) students

4. Collaborate with Coastline ROP to provide up to Three (3) informational

sessions to inform students, parents and faculty about the CyberForward

program.

B. Coastline ROP’s Responsibilities:

1. Student recruitment for the CyberForward information sessions,

program participation and career exploration webinar.

2. Hire CyberForward instructor.

3. Collaborate with the CyberForward program in the delivery of the

information sessions and webinar for the high school students.

4. Registration of students for the CyberForward program.

5. Student communication and notifications.

6. Administrative support.

7. Transcription of student grades and high school credits.

V. Points of Contact

CYBERFORWARD and Coastline ROP will designate Points of Contact

(POCs) within their respective organizations to oversee and facilitate the

implementation of this MOU.

CYBERFORWARD POC:

Name: Kolby Falco

Email: Kolby.falco@cyberfwd.com

Phone: (509) 724-3734

Coastline ROP POC:

Name:  Brian Dozer

Email:  bdozer@coastlinerop.net

Phone: (714) 429-2222 – Office

(949) 505-2889 - Cell

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.2

mailto:Kolby.falco@cyberfwd.com
mailto:bdozer@coastlinerop.net


pg. 3 

VI. Periodic Review

Representatives of CYBERFORWARD and Coastline ROP will review this

MOU at the end of the CyberForward training program. This MOU shall

remain in effect unless amended or terminated by the parties.  Amendments

must be agreed to by both parties. This MOU may be terminated at any time

by either party upon thirty (30) days’ notice to the other party.

VII. Modification

Amendments must be bilaterally executed in writing, signed by authorized

representatives of both parties. No oral or unilateral amendments will be

effective. Only terminations done in accordance with the terms of this

agreement may be done unilaterally.

VIII. Hold Harmless

a. CYBERFORWARD shall defend, indemnify, save and hold

harmless the Coastline ROP and their respective officers, directors,

and employees from and against all obligations, claims or liabilities

of any kind, including costs and attorneys’ fees, that may arise out

of any grossly negligent or intentional acts or omissions of any agent

or employee of CYBERFORWARD.  This shall include any acts of

sexual abuse alleged against any agent or employee of

CYBERFORWARD.

b. The Coastline ROP shall defend, indemnify, save, and hold harmless

CYBERFORWARD and its officers, directors, and employees from

and against all obligations, claims or liabilities of any kind,

including costs and attorneys’ fees that may arise out of any grossly

negligent or intentional acts or omissions of any agent or employee

Coastline ROP.  This shall include any acts of sexual abuse alleged

against any agent or employee of any Coastline ROP.

IX. Other Provisions

This MOU does not create a partnership or a joint venture and neither party

has the authority to bind the other. Subject to the Freedom of Information Act

(5 U.S.C. 552), decisions or disclosure of information to the public regarding

project(s) and program(s) within this MOU will be made following

consultation by the parties to this MOU.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.3



pg. 4 

This MOU shall become effective on behalf of the parties by signature of the 

undersigned: 

___________________________________________ __________________ 

Mike Gentile           Date 

CEO and Founder, CYBERFORWARD 

___________________________________________ __________________ 

Brian Dozer      Date 

Superintendent, Coastline ROP 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

12/7/2022

19.4



pg. 5 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

CYBERFORWARD CYBER SECURITY SUMMER ACADEMY PROGRAM 

FOR 

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

PROGRAM OUTLINE: 

Program Phase What’s Covered Number of 

Hours 

Students 

Served 

Phase 1 – Student 

Information Sessions 

Students will briefly be introduced to the cyber 

security field and the main occupations. 

They’ll learn about the CyberForward 

Program. 

1 – 1.5 (two 

or three 30- 

minute 

sessions) 

Approx. 

100+ 

Students interested in the program will complete an application. 

Phase 2 – Foundation 

Students will learn how the cyber security 

discipline operates as well as three junior level 

job roles and the tasks involved in each role. 20 Up to 30 

Phase 3 – Work-Based 

Learning 

Students will learn how to perform junior level 

tasks in the Policy Analyst, Third Party 

Assessor and Vulnerability Analyst roles. 

Students will perform mock work in real world 

scenarios and situations. They will also engage 

with cyber security staff about these roles and 

work on soft skills development. 

40 Up to 30 

4 – Employer 

Engagement & 

Internship Project 

Students will engage with employers on cyber 

security career exploration and/or scenario-

based project work. 

30 Up to 30 

5 – Paid Internship 

Opportunity 

Students that successfully complete the 

program will be given the opportunity to 

interview and, if selected, participate in a paid 

internship when available. 

TBD TBD 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.5



pg. 6 

PROGRAM DETAILS: 

Program Dates: January 24 – April 27, 2023 

• Information Sessions – December 2022 and January 2023 (Dates TBD)

Duration: 13 weeks; Tuesday and Thursday 4:30 pm to 6:30 pm (combination of 

synchronous and asynchronous) 

Location: Virtual 

Program Includes: 

• Marketing materials

• Student application, review and selection

• License to use CyberForward Training Curriculum

• Program delivery and instruction

• Learning Management System (Canvas) and/or Zoom platform for virtual

program delivery

• Program administration and support

• Student certificates

• Employer engagement and coordination

• Any applicable software licensing costs throughout the program

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.6



pg. 7 

TERMS & STUDENT CONFIDENTIALITY 

I. Financial Responsibilities

Coastline ROP agrees to pay CYBERFORWARD $40,000 for the delivery of

the CyberForward program as outlined in the attached scope of work (Exhibit

A). Any change must be specifically agreed to in writing by the signatories or

the organizations they represent. Payment terms are $20,000 due after the first

six weeks of the class and $20,000 due upon completion of the class.

II. Confidentiality, Record Keeping, and Information Sharing

Both parties recognize that the confidentiality of student records are defined

by provisions of state and federal law. The parties will adhere to these laws,

including the Family Educational Rights and Privacy Act (FERPA), California

Student Online Personal Information Protection Act (SOPIPA – Cal. Educ.

Code §§ 6501-6506). CYBERFORWARD agrees to maintain best-practice

record keeping that assures the privacy and confidentiality of all student data.

Coastline ROP agrees to make a good-faith effort to obtain signed releases

from students granting photo/video permission and/or to share educational

data with CYBERFORWARD where appropriate.

III. Effective Date

The terms of this MOU will become effective on the date of the last signature

by the parties and will remain in effect until terminated by either party.  The

class will be offered January 24, 2023 – April 27, 2023.

DocuSign Envelope ID: 333CDDC3-B8FA-4066-B87A-9E375D75A6AA

19.7



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  December 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: Budget Adjustment:  Resolution No. 2/2022-2023 

Issue/Background.  When the 2022-2023 budget was developed, there were several 
assumptions that were made as it relates to the different revenue streams which 
Coastline ROP expected to receive.  We agreed with our partner districts to reduce our 
cost per section fee for the 2022-2023 year which will result in a lower amount of 
revenue to the ROP.  In addition, we also agreed to fund the cost of after-bell classes 
which had low student enrollment which also will result in lower revenue to the ROP.  
The reduction in revenue is being partially offset by an increase in grant revenue and 
interest income.  Due to these changes, our overall revenue projection for the year 
needs to be decreased.  

Financial Implication. This decrease in net revenue will result in the decrease of 
available reserves for Coastline ROP.  Resolution 2/2022-2023 delineates the reserve 
and expenditure codes to which funds are to be adjusted.  

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve 
resolution number 2/2022-2023 for positive adoption. 

Enclosure 

20.0



FUND ACCT # AMOUNT

01 8590 All Other State Revenue 274,211
01 8660 Interest Income 54,000
01 8699 All Other Local Revenue 15,302
01 8781 All Other Transfers FR District (636,099)

(292,586)

FUND ACCT # AMOUNT

01 1000 Certificated Salaries 133,017
01 2000 Classified Salaries 219,363
01 3000 Employee Benefits (11,041)
01 4000 Books & Supplies 53,607
01 5000 Services and Operational Expenses 174,291
01 6000 Capital Outlay 180,039
01 7310 Transfer of Indirect Costs 0
01 9790 Unassigned/Unappropriated (1,041,862)

(292,586)

AYES

NOES

ABSENT

_______________________________________________________________

RESERVE / INCOME

Number 2/2022-2023

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM
ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DISTRICT 95

 RESOLUTION to Budget Revenue

         Whereas the Board of Trustees has determined that revenue in the amount of $292,586 is less than the amount 
originally budgeted for the current fiscal year from sources listed in Section 42610 of the Education Code of California 
as follows:

Total

Clerk/Secretary of the Board of Trustees

Total 

          NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED That pursuant to the above Education Code, The Governing 

RESERVE / EXPENDITURE

IN WITNESS OF THE ABOVE STATED ACTION, I have hereunto set my hand this 15th day of December, 2022.  

Board with a majority vote has approved such increase in revenue to be designated as follows:

20.1



1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, CA 92626 · (714) 979-1955 · www.coastlinerop.net     Brian K. Dozer, D.Mgt. Superintendent 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Sesar Morfin 

DATE:  December 5, 2022 

SUBJECT: Budget Transfer:  Resolution No. 3/2022-2023 

Issue/Background.  When the 2022-2023 budget was developed, there were several 
assumptions that were made as it relates to our projected expenditures which include 
salaries, benefits, supplies, etc.  Our projected expenditures are more than was 
originally projected so an adjustment in expenditures must be made to our budget.  This 
increase in expenditures is primarily due to salary-related actions that were approved by 
the board for newly hired teachers and staff and our existing teachers and staff.  Grant 
expenditures also increased since unspent grant monies from 2021-2022 are being 
recognized in 2022-2023 along with the associated expenditures.   

Financial Implication.  The increase in the expenditure projection in conjunction with the 
decreased net revenue projection will result in the decrease of available reserves for 
Coastline ROP.  Resolution 3/2022-2023 delineates the reserve and expenditure codes 
to which funds are to be adjusted.  

Recommendation.  It is respectfully requested that the Board of Trustees approve 
resolution number 3/2022-2023 for positive adoption. 

Enclosure 

21.0



FROM TO
FUND ACCT # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT FUND ACCT # DESCRIPTION AMOUNT

01 2200 Classifed Support Salaries 4,649.00$       01 1100 Teachers' Salaries 19,824.00$    
01 3200 PERS 905.00$   01 1900 Other Certificated Salaries 500.00$   
01 4300 Materials & Supplies 161,922.00$   01 3100 STRS 3,389.00$   
01 4400 Non-Capital Equipment 85,336.00$     01 3300 Medicare/OASDI 227.00$   
01 5200 Materials & Supplies 51,496.00$     01 3400 Health and Welfare 5.00$   
01 9790 Unassigned/Unappropriated 8,682.00$       01 3500 State Unemployment Ins. 80.00$   

01 3600 Workers' Compensation Ins. 301.00$   
01 4100 Books & Supplies 22,635.00$    
01 5800 Professional Services 12,503.00$    
01 6400 Equipment 253,526.00$  

312,990$   312,990$       

IN WITNESS OF THE ABOVE STATED ACTION, I have hereunto set my hand this 15th day of December, 2022.

_______________________________________
Clerk/Secretary of the Board of Trustees

AYES 

NOES 

ABSENT 

COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM
ORANGE COUNTY, CALIFORNIA

DISTRICT 95

 RESOLUTION TO TRANSFER FUNDS

Number 3/2022-2023

It has been resolved to make the budget transfers among the expenditure classifications and/or 
Unappropriated/Undesignated Reserves as listed below, within the General Fund, per Education Code 42600.

https://coastlinerop.sharepoint.com/sites/Private/Shared Documents/FISCAL/Budget & Projections NEW/Board Reports/2022-23/06 December/Resolution 3 2022-2023 Budget Transfer
21.1



COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

Minutes 
November 10, 2022 

The Board of Trustees of Coastline Regional Occupational Program met in regular session on 
October 20, 2022, in the boardroom at 1001 Presidio Square, Costa Mesa, California. The 
meeting was called to order at 9:10 a.m. by Suzie Swartz. 

Present Members Other 
Suzie Swartz Brian Dozer James Newton Lewis Zuluaga Daniel Liang 
Bonnie Castrey J. S. Coke Grant Litfin James Piccola Nikhita Iyer 
Lauren Brooks Sesar Morfin Lisa Snowden Krista Ganga Sarah Liang 

Debbie Ludwig Kim Thomason Mike Gentile Karthik Swaminathan 
Rocky Murray Siteria Edwards Lynn Stewart Ryan Biglou 
Ulises Garcia Hasan Asrar Kolby Falco 

CLOSED SESSION There was nothing to report out of closed session. Open session 
convened at 9:41 a.m. 

ADOPTION OF 
AGENDA 

It was moved by Member Carey, seconded by Member Brooks, to 
adopt the agenda with item 27, CyberForward presentation, moved 
before Information Items. Motion carried 3-0. 

CYBERFORWARD 
PRESENTATION 

Brian Dozer welcomed our partners at CyberForward. They 
presented information to the Board about our partnership, the 
CyberForward program, what they are teaching our students, and 
the internship opportunities they have provided. This partnership 
and program have had a tremendous impact on our students.  

SUPERINTENDENT’S 
REPORT 

Dr. Dozer shared that we received word from Irvine Valley College 
that there has been a change at the UCs regarding articulation, 
and they are not going to cancel existing articulation agreements. 
We expect Saddleback College will follow suit but are waiting to 
confirm that. This is very good news for our students.  

This past month our emergency preparedness training with 
Business Emergency Response Teams (BERT) expanded to 
include our entire staff and teachers. Earlier this week, we spent a 
morning working on tabletop exercises to address how we should 
approach various emergency situations, such as a Santa Ana wind 
event that causes widespread damage and power outages and a 
6.0 earthquake that hits Orange County. At the end of the month, 
we will be holding drills for all employees working at the Presidio 
site to see this work in action.  

On October 25, we held the “Changing the Narrative” webinar and 
had over 100 students in attendance. The webinar, which focused 
on ROP and CTE students using their experiences in their college 
essays to set them apart, was hosted by a former career specialist,
an application reader at UCI, and admissions representatives from 

22.0



EDUCATIONAL      
SERVICES’ REPORT 

Johns Hopkins University and Stony Brook University. Dr. Dozer 
gave thanks to everyone who collaborated on the webinar.  

Progress on our marketing plans continues. We are working on an 
integrated CTE Month plan in collaboration with each of our 
districts for February 2023. As part of this plan, Dr. Dozer will reach 
out to each district board for proclamations. We are finalizing a 
video plan for each school and are developing a new website.  

Late last month, Dr. Dozer attended the second session of the 
ACSA New Superintendent’s Seminar Series. This has proven to 
be a very valuable opportunity as it exposes him to many different 
areas of the position, shows him the challenges that districts face, 
and allows for great networking. At the last session, a big focus 
was on communication across the organization and in crisis 
situations.  

We are developing plans to create and launch new courses for our 
students. We have had many discussions and moved so quickly on 
them that Dr. Dozer will be meeting with Educational Services after 
Thanksgiving to create a project management plan to ensure we 
meet our targets for launching classes such as supply chain 
management, entrepreneurship, a data analytics summer course, 
our adult career education offerings, and more.  

Lastly, on Tuesday, November 8, he attended the Fall semester 
Medical Innovation, Research and Entrepreneurship presentations 
and celebration at University Lab Partners. The student 
presentations were creative, innovative, and very high quality. We 
will be hosting ULP and the students from the winning team at our 
December board meeting and will share their presentation at that 
time.  

In conclusion, Dr. Dozer said it had been an adventurous, jam-
packed, energizing nine months at Coastline ROP. He loves the 
work, the people, and the mission more every day. And thanked 
the Board for their continued guidance and support. 

On Monday, November 7, Coordinator James Piccola led the ROP 
staff in the Irvine Unified School District to participate in their 
College & Career Fair held at Woodbridge High School. Career 
Specialists Aaron Ruiz and Laurie Eberhard, Program Assistant 
Rachel Kreger, along with teachers Kathleen Rabbit, Tina Murphy, 
and Tom Misich were there to share about ROP opportunities.  

Registration for spring after-bell classes begins on Monday, 
November 14, for grade 12, Wednesday, November 16, for grade 
11, and Friday, November 18, for grades 9-10.  

Our career specialists came together on Wednesday, October 26, 
for their fall collaboration and training. They shared best practices, 

22.1



AB 361 – BROWN ACT 
AMENDMENT 

BOARD MEETING 
DATE/TIME CHANGES 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

ADJOURNMENT   

helped generate ideas for ongoing improvement, and received 
training on various other topics. Mr. Coke appreciates Krista 
Schweers-Ganga, James Piccola, and Rachel Kreger’s leadership 
in the meeting in his absence. 

There was no action taken. 

There was no action taken. 

It was moved by Member Brooks, seconded by Member Carey, to 
approve the Consent Calendar as presented. Motion carried 3-0.  

• Minutes from the October 20, 2022, Board of Trustees
meeting

• Ratification of purchase order report ending October 31,
2022

• Ratification of check report ending October 31, 2022
• Coastline ROP labor market study translation and publishing

quotes
• DocuSign agreement effective November 1, 2022 – October

31, 2025
• Purchase of anatomage tables
• CTE TEACH Site Memorandum of Understanding between

the Colton-Redlands-Yucaipa Regional Occupational
Program and Coastline ROP

• Memorandum of Understanding between Phantom Design
and Coastline ROP

• Independent Contract Agreement between Coastline ROP
and Dr. Brandee Ramirez

• Mission Viejo Chamber of Commerce membership renewal
• Inventory deletion report
• Personnel Register #4 – 2022-2023 (Approval of employee

appointments, release, retirements, terminations. leaves,
transfers, promotions, stipends, additional/overtime
assignments)

• Approval/Ratification of the travel conference report

It was moved by Member Brooks, seconded by Member Carey, to 
adjourn the meeting. Motion carried 3-0.  

The meeting adjourned at 10:22 a.m. 

__________________________________ 
Clerk/Secretary 

22.2





N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

11
/0

1/
20

22
T

O
11

/3
0/

20
22

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

12
/1

5/
20

22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

In
st

ru
ct

io
n 

Su
pp

or
t M

is
c 

C
O

V
ID

 / 
O

T
H

E
R

 C
O

N
T

R
A

C
T

E
D

01
60

19
05

6 
58

90
V

IT
A

L
 L

IN
K

 O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

54
,4

00
.0

0
S9

5A
03

42
54

,4
00

.0
0

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

T
ec

hn
ol

og
y 

C
O

V
ID

 / 
N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

01
60

19
08

7 
44

10
V

E
R

SA
R

E
2,

83
5.

39
S9

5C
03

41
2,

83
5.

39

St
re

et
er

/E
st

an
ci

a 
C

S 
/ N

O
N

-C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
/C

om
p 

&
 P

er
ip

he
al

01
74

37
11

 4
43

0
K

Y
O

C
E

R
A

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S 

W
E

S
1,

85
0.

00
S9

5C
03

43
1,

85
0.

00

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

C
ul

in
 A

rt
s 

O
V

 C
6 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

08
46

3 
43

00
C

H
E

F
'S

 T
O

Y
S

53
0.

11
S9

5C
03

44
53

0.
11

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

B
ak

e 
&

 P
a 

C
H

S 
C

6 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
08

46
6 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

44
5.

50
S9

5C
03

45
44

5.
50

K
an

to
r/

Sp
or

ts
 M

ed
/P

H
S 

IU
SD

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

01
20

26
1 

43
00

M
E

D
C

O
 S

U
P

P
L

Y
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

24
2.

44
S9

5C
03

46
24

2.
44

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
91

09
10

 4
33

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
24

.7
6

S9
5C

03
47

24
.7

6

B
eh

re
ns

/H
B

H
S 

H
B

SD
 S

W
P 

R
ou

nd
 2

 / 
N

E
W

 E
Q

U
IP

 A
L

L
01

66
83

0 
64

90
IL

L
U

M
IN

A
T

IO
N

 C
O

N
C

E
P

T
S 

L
L

C
69

,6
68

.8
9

S9
5C

03
48

69
,6

68
.8

9

Fi
sc

al
 A

dm
in

/C
O

V
ID

 / 
N

E
W

 E
Q

U
IP

 A
L

L
 O

T
H

E
R

01
60

19
07

5 
64

90
T

H
E

O
D

O
R

E
 R

O
B

B
IN

S 
F

O
R

D
62

,3
07

.7
4

S9
5C

03
50

62
,3

07
.7

4

Su
lli

va
n/

L
H

H
S 

SV
U

SD
 C

T
E

IG
 7

 / 
In

te
rn

et
 -

01
44

02
00

05
 5

88
8

M
IT

C
H

E
L

L
 1

1,
12

0.
98

S9
5C

03
51

1,
12

0.
98

M
or

ri
so

n/
R

O
P 

N
M

U
SD

 s
W

P 
2 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

66
83

1 
43

00
A

M
A

Z
O

N
42

6.
04

S9
5C

03
52

42
6.

04

D
oz

er
/S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t C
O

V
ID

 / 
N

O
N

-C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
/C

om
p 

&
01

60
19

07
4 

44
30

A
P

P
L

E
 C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 I

N
C

2,
20

8.
56

S9
5C

03
53

2,
20

8.
56

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
91

09
10

 4
33

0
M

E
D

C
O

 S
U

P
P

L
Y

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y
11

9.
21

S9
5C

03
54

11
9.

21

B
ol

di
ng

/S
tu

de
nt

 I
nf

o 
Sp

ec
ia

ls
t /

 O
T

H
 C

O
N

T
R

01
78

08
31

 5
89

5
A

E
R

IE
S 

SO
F

T
W

A
R

E
8,

20
0.

00
S9

5C
03

55
4,

10
0.

00

R
ev

en
ue

 0
10

5 
(6

35
0)

 / 
PR

E
PA

ID
 E

X
PE

N
SE

S
01

99
99

90
 9

33
0

4,
10

0.
00

W
ri

gh
t/A

ni
m

 S
W

P 
R

ou
nd

2 
R

O
P 

/ N
E

W
 E

Q
U

IP
 A

L
L

 O
T

H
E

R
01

66
82

3 
64

90
A

N
A

T
O

M
A

G
E

 I
N

C
.

22
1,

48
5.

26
S9

5C
03

56
53

,0
50

.6
3

Je
sk

e/
L

H
H

S 
SV

U
SD

 S
W

P 
R

ou
nd

 2
 / 

N
E

W
 E

Q
U

IP
 A

L
L

01
66

83
2 

64
90

84
,2

17
.3

1

E
ar

gl
e/

H
B

H
S 

H
B

U
H

SD
 S

W
P 

R
ou

nd
 2

 / 
N

E
W

 E
Q

U
IP

 A
L

L
01

66
83

4 
64

90
84

,2
17

.3
2

L
af

fe
n/

D
SC

 T
U

SD
 C

T
E

IG
-6

 T
U

SD
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

07
86

0 
43

00
O

F
F

IC
E

 D
E

P
O

T
67

.8
7

S9
5C

03
57

67
.8

7

Sc
hw

ee
rs

-G
an

ga
/A

dm
in

 E
D

U
 S

rv
cs

 / 
C

O
N

FE
R

E
N

C
E

S 
&

01
65

90
01

 5
22

0
O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 D

E
P

A
R

T
M

E
N

T
 O

F
 E

D
10

0.
00

S9
5C

03
58

10
0.

00

R
ui

z 
A

/I
rv

in
e 

C
S 

/ O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
74

27
12

 4
33

0
O

F
F

IC
E

 D
E

P
O

T
15

0.
84

S9
5C

03
59

13
8.

77
R

ui
z 

A
/C

re
ek

si
de

 C
ar

 S
pe

c 
/ O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

74
27

92
 4

33
0

12
.0

7

C
am

pb
el

l/I
H

S 
C

la
ss

es
 C

6 
/ I

nt
er

ne
t -

 S
of

tw
ar

e/
L

ic
en

se
s

01
20

26
0 

58
88

M
IT

C
H

E
L

L
 1

1,
12

0.
98

S9
5C

03
60

1,
12

0.
98

E
dw

ar
ds

, S
 / 

H
R

 A
dm

in
is

tr
at

or
 / 

C
O

N
FE

R
E

N
C

E
S 

&
01

76
49

30
 5

22
0

A
T

K
IN

SO
N

 A
N

D
E

L
SO

N
 L

O
Y

A
 R

U
U

D
 &

69
.0

0
S9

5C
03

61
69

.0
0

SX
M

O
R

F
<

V
er

. 0
20

70
3>

PO
01

0
Pa

ge
 N

o.
:

1
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

12
/0

2/
20

22
10

:4
1:

19
C

ur
re

nt
 T

im
e:

23.0



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

11
/0

1/
20

22
T

O
11

/3
0/

20
22

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

12
/1

5/
20

22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

L
ub

ri
no

 T
/P

T
 I

nt
er

n 
C

H
S 

C
T

E
G

6 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
22

11
00

00
 4

30
0

P
O

C
K

E
T

 N
U

R
SE

29
3.

87
S9

5C
03

62
29

3.
87

K
re

ge
/P

ro
gr

am
 A

ss
t-

SS
 S

W
P 

3 
/ O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

68
21

9 
43

30
A

M
A

Z
O

N
75

.4
0

S9
5C

03
63

67
.8

6
K

re
ge

/P
ro

gr
A

ss
t-

In
st

r 
Su

p 
SW

P3
 / 

O
ff

ic
e

01
68

22
0 

43
30

7.
54

A
ll 

In
st

ru
ct

io
n 

01
05

 (
63

50
) 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

64
82

00
 4

30
0

O
F

F
IC

E
 D

E
P

O
T

18
7.

05
S9

5C
03

64
18

7.
05

Ja
co

bs
/S

po
rt

s 
M

ed
 M

ar
in

a 
C

6 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

 O
T

H
E

R
01

06
06

8 
44

90
A

M
A

Z
O

N
2,

15
0.

69
S9

5C
03

65
2,

15
0.

69

M
ed

ia
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

te
r/

F2
49

0 
/ O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

60
80

00
 4

33
0

O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 E
D

3,
41

4.
61

S9
5C

03
66

1,
70

7.
29

M
ed

ia
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

te
r/

F.
27

00
 / 

O
ff

ic
e 

Su
pp

lie
s-

C
on

su
m

ab
le

01
60

80
20

 4
33

0
1,

70
7.

32

E
ar

gl
e/

H
B

H
S 

C
6 

/ N
O

N
 C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

 -
 O

T
H

E
R

01
33

03
00

03
 4

49
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

2,
68

8.
36

S9
5C

03
67

2,
68

8.
36

H
ay

de
n/

V
E

 M
H

S 
C

6 
H

B
U

H
SD

 / 
M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

 S
U

PP
L

IE
S

01
04

16
0 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

30
2.

29
S9

5C
03

68
30

2.
29

In
st

ru
ct

io
na

l S
up

po
rt

 / 
O

ff
ic

e 
Su

pp
lie

s-
C

on
su

m
ab

le
01

66
00

00
 4

33
0

A
M

A
Z

O
N

80
.6

7
S9

5C
03

69
80

.6
7

E
m

er
ge

nc
y 

&
 D

is
as

te
r 

Pr
ep

 / 
SU

PP
L

 -
 D

IS
A

ST
E

R
 &

 E
M

E
R

G
01

97
09

00
 4

38
5

A
M

A
Z

O
N

92
.5

6
S9

5C
03

70
92

.5
6

E
ar

gl
e/

H
B

H
S 

C
6 

/ N
O

N
 C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

 -
 O

T
H

E
R

01
33

03
00

03
 4

49
0

A
M

E
R

IC
A

N
 3

B
 S

C
IE

N
T

IF
IC

2,
74

0.
93

S9
5C

03
71

2,
74

0.
93

M
ur

ph
y/

PH
S 

IU
SD

 S
W

P 
R

ou
nd

 2
 / 

N
O

N
-C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

/C
om

p
01

66
83

6 
44

30
A

P
P

L
E

 C
O

M
P

U
T

E
R

 I
N

C
72

,5
48

.7
2

S9
5C

03
72

72
,5

48
.7

2

Si
em

on
sm

a/
M

V
H

S 
SV

U
SD

 C
T

E
IG

 7
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

44
03

00
04

 4
30

0
A

M
A

Z
O

N
17

.7
5

S9
5C

03
74

17
.7

5

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

C
ul

in
 A

rt
s 

O
V

 C
6 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

08
46

3 
43

00
A

M
A

Z
O

N
39

4.
95

S9
5C

03
75

39
4.

95

V
an

D
er

M
e/

M
C

 S
W

P 
R

ou
nd

2 
O

V
H

S 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
66

83
5 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

40
8.

87
S9

5C
03

76
40

8.
87

A
be

llo
n/

Sp
or

ts
 M

ed
ic

in
e 

E
H

S 
C

6 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

01
06

16
7 

44
90

A
M

A
Z

O
N

2,
68

8.
36

S9
5C

03
77

2,
68

8.
36

M
ur

ph
y/

In
te

rm
 V

id
/F

ilm
 C

6 
PH

S 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
19

96
0 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

18
0.

94
S9

5C
03

78
18

0.
94

R
iz

za
/E

ST
 N

M
U

SD
 s

W
P 

2 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

 O
T

H
E

R
01

66
83

7 
44

90
A

M
A

Z
O

N
4,

26
6.

89
S9

5C
03

79
4,

26
6.

89

E
ar

gl
e/

H
B

H
S 

C
6 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

33
03

00
03

 4
30

0
R

E
C

O
V

E
R

Y
 F

O
R

 A
T

H
L

E
T

E
S 

L
L

C
2,

90
6.

02
S9

5C
03

80
1,

18
8.

48
E

ar
gl

e/
H

B
H

S 
C

6 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

 O
T

H
E

R
01

33
03

00
03

 4
49

0
1,

71
7.

54

M
ur

ph
y/

In
te

rm
 V

id
/F

ilm
 C

6 
PH

S 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
19

96
0 

43
00

B
 &

 H
 P

H
O

T
O

27
,9

84
.8

6
S9

5C
03

81
5,

52
7.

38

M
ur

ph
y/

In
te

rm
 V

id
/F

ilm
 C

6 
PH

S 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

01
19

96
0 

44
90

22
,4

57
.4

8

SX
M

O
R

F
<

V
er

. 0
20

70
3>

PO
01

0
Pa

ge
 N

o.
:

2
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

12
/0

2/
20

22
10

:4
1:

19
C

ur
re

nt
 T

im
e:

23.1



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
A

M
O

U
N

T
T

O
T

A
L

V
E

N
D

O
R

F
R

O
M

11
/0

1/
20

22
T

O
11

/3
0/

20
22

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S 

M
E

E
T

IN
G

12
/1

5/
20

22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
P

U
R

C
H

A
SE

 O
R

D
E

R
 D

E
T

A
IL

 R
E

P
O

R
T

P
O

P
O

N
U

M
B

E
R

Ja
co

bs
/S

po
rt

s 
M

ed
 M

ar
in

a 
C

6 
/ N

O
N

 C
A

P 
E

Q
U

IP
 -

 O
T

H
E

R
01

06
06

8 
44

90
SM

A
R

T
 T

O
O

L
S 

P
L

U
S 

L
L

C
3,

11
8.

32
S9

5C
03

82
1,

03
9.

45

E
ar

gl
e/

H
B

H
S 

C
6 

/ N
O

N
 C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

 -
 O

T
H

E
R

01
33

03
00

03
 4

49
0

1,
03

9.
44

M
cN

ei
l/C

M
H

S 
SW

P 
R

ou
nd

 2
 N

M
 / 

N
O

N
 C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

 -
01

66
82

7 
44

90
1,

03
9.

43

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

O
T

H
E

R
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
E

D
01

91
09

10
 5

89
0

C
H

E
R

R
Y

, C
H

R
IS

SY
49

5.
00

S9
5C

03
83

49
5.

00

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

oo
l A

dm
in

 F
27

00
 / 

O
T

H
E

R
 C

O
N

T
R

A
C

T
E

D
01

91
09

10
 5

89
0

O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

 D
E

P
A

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F

 E
D

4,
62

0.
00

S9
5C

03
84

4,
62

0.
00

B
ud

d-
B

/S
W

P 
K

12
 P

at
hw

ay
 C

oo
rd

 4
 / 

M
E

M
B

E
R

SH
IP

S 
-

01
60

01
00

0 
53

95
M

IS
SI

O
N

 V
IE

JO
 C

H
A

M
B

E
R

 O
F

 C
O

M
M

E
16

5.
00

S9
5C

03
85

82
.5

0

SW
P 

K
12

 P
at

hw
ay

 C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 4
 / 

PR
E

PA
ID

 E
X

PE
N

SE
S

01
60

01
99

9 
93

30
82

.5
0

W
ri

gh
t/A

ni
m

 S
W

P 
R

ou
nd

2 
R

O
P 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

66
82

3 
43

00
G

T
 S

IM
U

L
A

T
O

R
S

1,
63

7.
21

S9
5C

03
87

1,
63

7.
21

C
am

pb
el

l/A
ut

o 
T

ec
h 

A
D

V
 I

H
S 

C
6 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

18
46

0 
43

00
A

M
A

Z
O

N
2,

72
1.

06
S9

5C
03

88
2,

72
1.

06

V
an

 D
er

 M
er

w
e/

B
ak

e 
&

 P
a 

C
H

S 
C

6 
/ M

A
T

E
R

IA
L

S 
&

01
08

46
6 

43
00

A
M

A
Z

O
N

1,
65

6.
59

S9
5C

03
89

1,
65

6.
59

C
ok

e/
D

ir
ec

to
r,

 E
D

U
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
 S

U
PP

L
IE

S
01

65
80

00
 4

30
0

A
P

P
L

E
 C

O
M

P
U

T
E

R
 I

N
C

10
6.

67
S9

5C
03

90
10

6.
67

M
or

ri
so

n/
R

O
P 

N
M

U
SD

 s
W

P 
2 

/ T
X

T
B

K
S 

- 
In

st
r

01
66

83
1 

41
10

JO
N

E
S 

&
 B

A
R

T
L

E
T

T
 L

E
A

R
N

IN
G

 L
L

C
24

,3
64

.6
7

S9
5C

03
91

8,
12

1.
76

H
ar

te
l/C

H
S 

IU
SD

 S
W

P 
R

2 
/ T

X
T

B
K

S 
- 

In
st

r
01

66
84

4 
41

10
8,

12
1.

76

B
re

nn
er

/T
H

H
S 

SV
U

SD
 S

W
P 

R
2 

/ T
X

T
B

K
S 

- 
In

st
r

01
66

84
5 

41
10

8,
12

1.
15

K
in

gs
bu

ry
/N

H
H

 N
M

U
SD

 s
W

P 
2 

/ M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

66
84

0 
43

00
A

M
A

Z
O

N
10

,2
43

.6
2

S9
5C

03
92

10
,2

43
.6

2

Fe
rn

an
de

z-
B

oc
an

eg
ra

/R
O

P 
N

M
U

SD
 / 

M
A

T
E

R
IA

L
S 

&
01

11
06

00
00

 4
30

0
O

SH
A

 R
E

V
IE

W
 I

N
C

.
11

0.
95

S9
5X

03
49

11
0.

95

D
oz

er
/S

up
er

in
te

nd
en

t /
 C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 -

 I
nt

rn
et

 S
vc

s
01

76
09

33
 5

94
0

V
E

R
IZ

O
N

 B
U

SI
N

E
SS

30
3.

92
S9

5X
03

86
30

3.
92

60
0,

34
0.

37
F

un
d 

01
 T

ot
al

:

60
0,

34
0.

37
T

ot
al

 A
m

ou
nt

 o
f 

P
ur

ch
as

e 
O

rd
er

s:

23.2



N
U

M
B

E
R

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
11

/3
0/

20
22

T
O

11
/0

1/
20

22
F

R
O

12
/1

5/
20

22

P
SE

U
D

O
 / 

O
B

JE
C

T
 D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
N

U
M

B
E

V
E

N
D

O
R

A
M

O
U

N
T

C
H

A
N

G
E

B
O

A
R

D
 O

F
 T

R
U

ST
E

E
S

P
O

P
O

P
U

R
C

H
A

SE
 O

R
D

E
R

 D
E

T
A

IL
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 -

 C
H

A
N

G
E

 O
R

D
E

R
S

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.

T
O

T
A

L

M
ai

ns
ite

/S
ch

l A
dm

 F
27

00
 C

O
V

ID
 / 

N
O

N
-C

A
P 

E
Q

U
IP

/C
om

p
K

Y
O

C
E

R
A

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S 

W
E

S
+

4,
93

7.
63

01
60

19
05

7 
44

30
68

,6
48

.8
9

R
95

C
06

67

4,
93

7.
63

F
un

d 
01

 T
ot

al
:

4,
93

7.
63

T
ot

al
 A

m
ou

nt
 o

f 
C

ha
ng

e 
O

rd
er

s:

12
/0

2/
20

22
C

ur
re

nt
 D

at
e:

Pa
ge

 N
o.

:
1

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:
<

R
ev

. 0
70

30
3>

10
:4

4:
55

23.3



24.0



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 1
1/

1/
20

22
 t

o 
11

/3
0/

20
22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
10

04
76

/1
06

9
O

H
C

O
A

ST
L

IN
E

 R
O

P 
R

E
V

O
L

V
IN

G
 C

A
SH

 F
V

95
00

04
5

00
03

21
06

95
 1

1/
02

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

11
5.

00
10

37
1

O
H

C
ou

rs
eS

to
rm

 I
nc

.
V

95
02

33
2

00
03

21
07

95
 1

1/
02

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

2,
00

0.
00

07
44

22
46

O
H

IN
G

A
R

D
IA

 B
R

O
S 

PR
O

D
U

C
E

 I
N

C
V

95
02

29
3

00
03

21
08

95
 1

1/
02

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

76
0.

89
S9

5C
00

90
O

H
L

C
 W

IR
IN

G
 I

N
C

O
R

PO
R

A
T

E
D

V
95

01
27

6
00

03
21

09
95

 1
1/

02
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
4,

99
0.

36
10

03
2

O
H

M
A

R
G

A
R

E
T

 A
. C

H
ID

E
ST

E
R

 &
 A

SS
O

C
I

V
95

00
63

5
00

03
21

10
95

 1
1/

02
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

41
3.

25
IN

95
68

73
89

O
H

M
E

D
C

O
 S

U
PP

L
Y

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

V
95

01
01

6
00

03
21

11
95

 1
1/

02
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
10

5.
52

31
05

77
14

52
O

H
PI

T
N

E
Y

 B
O

W
E

S
V

95
00

04
9

00
03

21
12

95
 1

1/
02

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

41
5.

37
88

01
/5

92
O

H
SM

A
R

T
 &

 F
IN

A
L

V
95

00
65

1
00

03
21

13
95

 1
1/

02
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
65

8.
05

28
04

1
O

H
Z

A
H

O
U

R
E

K
 S

Y
ST

E
M

S 
IN

C
V

95
02

21
8

00
03

21
14

95
 1

1/
02

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

74
9.

00
33

67
74

O
H

T
H

E
O

D
O

R
E

 R
O

B
B

IN
S 

FO
R

D
V

95
00

79
2

00
03

21
15

95
 1

1/
03

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

62
,3

07
.7

4
14

08
09

O
H

D
E

PT
 O

F 
JU

ST
IC

E
V

95
00

38
7

00
03

21
16

95
 1

1/
04

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

32
.0

0
O

O
PE

-1
03

12
2D

O
Z

O
H

D
O

Z
E

R
, B

R
IA

N
V

95
02

42
5

00
03

21
17

95
 1

1/
04

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

60
0.

58
27

83
42

8
O

H
Fl

in
n 

Sc
ie

nt
if

ic
V

95
02

48
2

00
03

21
18

95
 1

1/
04

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

10
5.

80
O

O
PE

-1
02

42
2L

U
D

O
H

L
U

D
W

IG
, D

E
B

B
IE

V
95

00
79

5
00

03
21

19
95

 1
1/

04
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
11

0.
76

O
O

PE
-1

02
52

2G
A

N
O

H
SC

H
W

E
E

R
S-

G
A

N
G

A
, K

R
IS

T
A

V
95

01
47

2
00

03
21

20
95

 1
1/

04
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
12

.2
8

93
01

/3
89

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

21
21

95
 1

1/
04

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

59
4.

59
55

52
O

H
V

IT
A

L
 L

IN
K

 O
R

A
N

G
E

 C
O

U
N

T
Y

V
95

00
67

8
00

03
21

22
95

 1
1/

04
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
17

,6
37

.5
0

R
10

48
68

4
O

H
C

A
L

IC
O

 B
U

IL
D

IN
G

 S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
V

95
02

32
5

00
03

21
23

95
 1

1/
08

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

2,
59

4.
50

55
B

22
02

42
5

O
H

K
Y

O
C

E
R

A
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S 
W

E
S

V
95

02
45

3
00

03
21

24
95

 1
1/

08
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
68

,6
48

.7
2

28
26

56
54

O
H

M
IT

C
H

E
L

L
 1

V
95

02
17

0
00

03
21

25
95

 1
1/

08
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

12
0.

98
10

/0
1-

10
/3

1 
12

50
O

H
N

E
W

PO
R

T
 U

R
G

E
N

T
 C

A
R

E
V

95
01

38
5

00
03

21
26

95
 1

1/
08

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

32
0.

00
27

55
22

74
40

01
O

H
O

FF
IC

E
 D

E
PO

T
V

95
03

87
5

00
03

21
27

95
 1

1/
08

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

68
.9

3
10

/0
6-

10
/2

7
O

H
R

ui
z,

 A
ar

on
V

95
02

50
0

00
03

21
28

95
 1

1/
08

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

14
.3

8
11

40
1/

59
2

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

21
29

95
 1

1/
08

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

15
5.

12
ID

O
H

C
L

C
V

95
02

36
8

00
03

21
30

95
 1

1/
09

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

40
.0

0
L

IF
E

 I
N

S/
N

O
V

O
H

M
E

T
R

O
PO

L
IT

A
N

 L
IF

E
 I

N
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 C

O
V

95
02

04
0

00
03

21
31

95
 1

1/
09

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

42
3.

64
K

A
IS

 1
1/

01
-1

1/
30

O
H

R
E

E
P 

FO
R

 B
E

N
E

FI
T

S
V

95
01

35
0

00
03

21
32

95
 1

1/
09

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

30
,9

23
.9

6
13

17
-4

V
PC

-C
R

R
G

O
H

A
M

A
Z

O
N

V
95

01
26

9
00

03
21

33
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
22

.5
1

A
K

05
09

22
54

O
H

A
PP

L
E

 C
O

M
PU

T
E

R
 I

N
C

V
95

00
30

3
00

03
21

34
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
5,

24
8.

66
20

67
59

07
4

O
H

B
 &

 H
 P

H
O

T
O

V
95

00
38

2
00

03
21

35
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
2,

04
6.

17
19

7
O

H
C

A
L

IF
O

R
N

IA
 T

A
C

T
IC

 P
A

T
R

O
L

V
95

00
94

8
00

03
21

36
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

36
0.

00
79

53
49

24
O

H
C

E
N

G
A

G
E

 L
E

A
R

N
IN

G
V

95
00

99
2

00
03

21
37

95
 1

1/
10

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

3,
76

4.
66

R
S4

84
86

03
O

H
C

O
R

O
D

A
T

A
 R

E
C

O
R

D
S 

M
A

N
A

G
E

M
E

N
T

 I
N

V
95

02
01

1
00

03
21

38
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
56

.3
9

40
94

91
78

O
H

FI
R

ST
-C

IT
IZ

E
N

S 
B

A
N

K
 &

 T
R

U
ST

 C
O

V
95

02
46

9
00

03
21

39
95

 1
1/

10
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

19
1.

32

12
/0

2/
20

22

10
:1

8:
25

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

P
ag

e

1

24.1



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 1
1/

1/
20

22
 t

o 
11

/3
0/

20
22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
E

X
PC

H
K

-9
50

31
55

7
O

H
K

R
E

G
E

R
, R

A
C

H
E

L
V

95
01

32
1

00
03

21
40

95
 1

1/
10

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

43
.7

8
27

18
52

52
O

H
H

E
N

R
Y

 S
C

H
E

IN
 I

N
C

.
V

95
04

78
6

00
03

21
41

95
 1

1/
15

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

77
.0

1
22

11
15

76
29

O
H

IN
T

E
R

M
E

D
IA

.N
E

T
 I

N
C

V
95

02
38

2
00

03
21

42
95

 1
1/

15
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
87

9.
30

55
B

21
96

23
4

O
H

K
Y

O
C

E
R

A
 D

O
C

U
M

E
N

T
 S

O
L

U
T

IO
N

S 
W

E
S

V
95

02
45

3
00

03
21

43
95

 1
1/

15
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
12

.0
0

48
74

58
51

O
H

M
C

K
E

SS
O

N
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 M
E

D
IC

A
L

 C
O

R
P

V
95

01
82

1
00

03
21

44
95

 1
1/

15
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
41

9.
52

27
15

74
14

50
01

O
H

O
FF

IC
E

 D
E

PO
T

V
95

03
87

5
00

03
21

45
95

 1
1/

15
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
59

4.
05

C
M

37
94

0M
O

H
O

N
T

A
R

IO
 R

E
FR

IG
E

R
A

T
IO

N
V

95
02

45
4

00
03

21
46

95
 1

1/
15

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

69
5.

00
35

76
42

02
70

O
H

O
'R

E
IL

L
Y

 A
U

T
O

 P
A

R
T

S
V

95
01

47
5

00
03

21
47

95
 1

1/
16

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

18
3.

70
06

05
-0

00
93

05
39

O
H

R
A

IN
B

O
W

 D
IS

PO
SA

L
 C

O
 I

N
C

V
95

04
45

7
00

03
21

48
95

 1
1/

16
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
38

1.
61

66
01

/7
37

O
H

SM
A

R
T

 &
 F

IN
A

L
V

95
00

65
1

00
03

21
49

95
 1

1/
16

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

13
8.

64
80

68
01

25
81

O
H

ST
A

PL
E

S 
B

U
SI

N
E

SS
 A

D
V

A
N

T
A

G
E

V
95

00
72

2
00

03
21

50
95

 1
1/

16
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
31

6.
55

12
63

09
10

11
10

12
2

O
H

T
IM

E
 W

A
R

N
E

R
 C

A
B

L
E

V
95

01
49

9
00

03
21

51
95

 1
1/

16
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

88
8.

76
50

01
99

24
97

8
O

H
W

H
IT

E
 C

A
P

V
95

02
09

7
00

03
21

52
95

 1
1/

16
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
51

3.
88

10
18

00
36

23
O

H
A

PP
L

E
 C

O
M

PU
T

E
R

 I
N

C
V

95
00

30
3

00
03

21
53

95
 1

1/
17

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

46
1.

17
10

/1
1-

10
/2

7A
SR

A
R

O
H

A
SR

A
R

, H
A

SA
N

V
95

02
24

5
00

03
21

54
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
64

.1
3

66
48

63
O

H
A

T
K

IN
SO

N
 A

N
D

E
L

SO
N

 L
O

Y
A

 R
U

U
D

 &
V

95
01

91
9

00
03

21
55

95
 1

1/
17

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

25
2.

00
38

57
65

3
O

H
C

H
E

F'
S 

T
O

Y
S

V
95

00
46

5
00

03
21

56
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
60

4.
45

97
13

O
H

F 
&

 M
 C

re
di

t C
ar

d
V

95
02

32
6

00
03

21
57

95
 1

1/
17

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

5,
16

6.
81

49
18

38
97

O
H

M
C

K
E

SS
O

N
 G

E
N

E
R

A
L

 M
E

D
IC

A
L

 C
O

R
P

V
95

01
82

1
00

03
21

58
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
33

7.
62

10
/1

7-
10

/1
9M

IS
IC

O
H

M
IS

IC
H

, T
H

O
M

A
S

V
95

02
18

4
00

03
21

59
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
62

.8
1

27
49

85
87

70
01

O
H

O
FF

IC
E

 D
E

PO
T

V
95

03
87

5
00

03
21

60
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
24

7.
79

11
01

22
R

IC
O

O
H

R
IC

O
, M

O
N

IQ
U

E
V

95
01

93
4

00
03

21
61

95
 1

1/
17

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

57
.5

0
62

01
/3

75
O

H
SM

A
R

T
 &

 F
IN

A
L

V
95

00
65

1
00

03
21

62
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
46

1.
77

11
01

22
V

A
N

D
E

R
M

O
H

V
A

N
 D

E
R

 M
E

R
W

E
, R

O
C

H
E

L
L

E
V

95
02

27
1

00
03

21
63

95
 1

1/
17

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

77
.5

1
IN

V
39

44
54

C
O

A
20

0
O

H
W

O
R

T
H

IN
G

T
O

N
 D

IR
E

C
T

V
95

02
03

3
00

03
21

64
95

 1
1/

17
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
1,

14
7.

13
11

11
00

03
43

01
O

H
D

O
C

U
SI

G
N

 I
N

C
 L

oc
kb

ox
V

95
02

40
34

00
03

21
65

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

8,
90

0.
00

1-
35

26
42

-1
12

2
O

H
E

nc
om

pa
ss

 S
up

pl
y 

C
ha

in
V

95
02

50
6

00
03

21
66

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

1,
09

1.
59

85
09

68
46

O
H

E
X

X
O

N
 M

O
B

IL
V

95
00

82
8

00
03

21
67

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

90
.8

4
27

95
38

95
O

H
H

E
N

R
Y

 S
C

H
E

IN
 I

N
C

.
V

95
04

78
6

00
03

21
68

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

24
5.

62
07

46
15

87
O

H
IN

G
A

R
D

IA
 B

R
O

S 
PR

O
D

U
C

E
 I

N
C

V
95

02
29

3
00

03
21

69
95

 1
1/

22
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
22

4.
38

10
93

63
O

H
K

A
T

H
C

O
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
V

95
02

56
3

00
03

21
70

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

39
4.

66
55

B
22

05
00

5
O

H
K

Y
O

C
E

R
A

 D
O

C
U

M
E

N
T

 S
O

L
U

T
IO

N
S 

W
E

S
V

95
02

45
3

00
03

21
71

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

12
.0

0
IN

95
75

23
78

O
H

M
E

D
C

O
 S

U
PP

L
Y

 C
O

M
PA

N
Y

V
95

01
01

6
00

03
21

72
95

 1
1/

22
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
13

5.
32

12
15

62
57

O
H

M
IC

R
O

 C
E

N
T

E
R

 A
/R

V
95

00
07

1
00

03
21

73
95

 1
1/

22
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
45

9.
92

12
/0

2/
20

22

10
:1

8:
25

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

P
ag

e

2

24.2



R
ef

er
en

ce
Su

bs
P

ay
ee

 I
D

P
ay

ee
 N

am
e

C
he

ck
C

he
ck

 D
at

e
C

an
ce

l D
at

e
St

at
us

C
he

ck
 A

m
ou

nt

fr
om

 1
1/

1/
20

22
 t

o 
11

/3
0/

20
22

C
O

A
ST

L
IN

E
 R

.O
.P

.
C

on
so

lid
at

ed
 C

he
ck

 R
eg

is
te

r

T
yp

e
27

64
66

12
00

01
O

H
O

FF
IC

E
 D

E
PO

T
V

95
03

87
5

00
03

21
74

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

54
.3

0
94

SI
14

68
O

H
O

R
A

N
G

E
 C

O
U

N
T

Y
 D

E
PA

R
T

M
E

N
T

 O
F 

E
D

V
95

00
13

4
00

03
21

75
95

 1
1/

22
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
3,

41
4.

60
10

/0
4-

10
/2

1P
E

R
E

Z
O

H
PE

R
E

Z
, A

L
E

X
V

95
00

94
2

00
03

21
76

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

57
.6

9
55

01
/5

92
O

H
SM

A
R

T
 &

 F
IN

A
L

V
95

00
65

1
00

03
21

77
95

 1
1/

22
/2

02
2

M
W

IS
38

4.
99

99
19

76
04

40
O

H
V

E
R

IZ
O

N
 W

IR
E

L
E

SS
V

95
00

42
2

00
03

21
78

95
 1

1/
22

/2
02

2
M

W
IS

21
0.

90

24
1,

36
9.

93
Is

su
ed

:
24

1,
36

9.
93

B
an

k 
T

ot
al

:
95

24
1,

36
9.

93
G

ra
nd

 T
ot

al
:

12
/0

2/
20

22

10
:1

8:
25

B
K

30
05

: C
on

so
lid

at
ed

 C
he

ck
 R

eg
is

te
r

C
ur

re
nt

 D
at

e:

C
ur

re
nt

 T
im

e:

SX
M

O
R

F 
- 

Se
sa

r 
M

or
fi

n
U

se
r:

P
ag

e

3

24.3



California Association of School Business Officials
1001 K Street, 5th Floor 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
United States
(916) 447-3783
https://www.casbo.org/
accounting@casbo.org

Invoice

Date 11/23/2022
SalesOrder 000193348
Balance Due $637.50

Addressed to:

Coastline ROP
Sesar Morfin
1001 Presidio Sq
Costa Mesa California 92626-5632

Items:

QTY DESCRIPTION LIST PRICE SALE PRICE TOTAL

1 Organizational Subscription  $5,250.00  $637.50  $637.50

Subtotal:  $637.50

Total:  $637.50

25.0





COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM 

TO: Board Members 

FROM: J. S. Coke 

DATE: December 15, 2022 

SUBJECT: New Internship Sites 

Careers with Children Internship 
Learning Lab Preschool 
5000 Barranca Parkway 
Irvine, CA 2604 

Retail Sales & Merchandising Internship 
The Game Chest, Inc. 
880 Spectrum Center Drive 
Irvine, CA 92618 

26.0





BOARD UPDATE 
December 7, 2022 

EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL REGISTER NO. 5 – 2022-2023 

It is recommended that the Board approve the following personnel actions: 

EMPLOYMENT: 

Name: Marissa Ayala 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Culinary Arts 
Location: Creekside H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

Name: Annette Dokes 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Construction Tech Pre-Apprenticeship 
Location: Estancia H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

Name: Amadiel Hernandez 
Position: Career Specialist 
Program: Student Services 
Location: University H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

Name: Edward Jasperson 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Construction Technology/BITA 
Location: Estancia H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

Name: Soo Kim 
Position: Career Specialist 
Program: Student Services 
Location: Portola H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

Name: Katie Richey 
Position: Teacher 
Program: Medical Nursing Careers Internship 
Location: Creekside H.S. 
Effective Pending new hire processing 

_______________________________ 
   Brian K. Dozer 

27.0





Coastline Regional Occupational Program 
Travel/Conference Report 

Board Meeting  
December 15, 2022 

Name Date(s) Destination Purpose Amount 

Krista Schweers-Ganga, 
Administrator 
Presidio Campus 

Alex Perez, Instructional 
Support/Media Specialist 
Presidio Campus 

Dec. 1 – Jun. 30 

Jan. 25 

Virtual 

Anaheim, CA 

UDL 101: Learn the Basics 
of Universal Design for 
Learning 

Seminar: Practical 
Strategies for Improving 
the Behavior of Students 

Total 

$100.00 

316.62 

$416.62 

28.0


	AGENDA
	03 Agenda December 15, 2022.pdf
	COASTLINE REGIONAL OCCUPATIONAL PROGRAM

	21.1 Resolution 2 2022-2023 Budget Adjustment.pdf
	RES 

	22.1 Resolution 3 2022-2023 Budget Transfer.pdf
	RES 3

	28. Personnel Action Report - December 7 2022 rev..pdf
	BOARD UPDATE
	EMPLOYEE PERSONNEL REGISTER NO. 5 – 2022-2023

	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page



